Giuseppe Notte's



ALL ABOUT WOMEN

The Encyclopedia Of Seduction



ALL ABOUT WOMEN

- The Encyclopedia Of Seduction

CONTENTS

Introduction 4

D^{Λ}	RT	\sim	\sim
PA	ĸп	()	IV F

Being a woman 5

If only I were a woman ... 5
What a girl wants, what a girl needs 6
Understanding women 9

PART TWO

How to be the Man 15

What a real Man is like and what it means to lead 15

Typical errors men make and how to avoid them 20

Dressing, working out, taking care of yourself 24

Manly body language and voice tone 25

First, put things together on the inside; then everything will be fine on the outside 27

PART THREE

The first step: meeting girls 30

Decide your goals and what you are willing to invest – it all depends on you

Overcoming your fear of talking to strangers using mass approaches 33

Approaching her – what mistakes to avoid 35

Approaching her – what to say and how 37

Getting her phone number 41

Other venues 42

When a girl wants to be approached 43

Meeting women on the Net 45

PART FOUR

Second step: from the first date to having sex 48

On the phone 48
Where to go on the first few dates 49
What to talk about 51
Sex and critical topics 55
How to read women: signs that she is ready to go physical 57
How long does it take to lay her? 60

Getting women in the mood: three ways to kiss her 61
The make-out 64
Her place or yours 66
What to have at home; how your apartment should look 68

Final words 72

Appendix: Recommended reading 73

Visit us at www.seduction-and-dating.com!

Introduction

Greetings, fellow reader! Thanks for taking the time to read my book, *All About Women*. For the next few hours and beyond, I'll be your guide on a fascinating journey. I'll do my best to make it a good time for both of us. My goal is to take you through a complete transformation, whether you are a total beginner or you have already had a few girlfriends here and there. Please don't forget that what I've written here might be too much to absorb in one reading. So don't hesitate to check back often and consult this book whenever you have problems with women. *It was designed that way*. So let's begin ...

This book is only for people who are 18 or over!

Note: Everything in this book is mere speculation, based on my knowledge and real-life experiences up to the point of writing it. But I could be WRONG. Take what I say with a grain of salt and not as the absolute truth. I'm pretty sure that, in time, even my opinion will change on many of the topics that I have written about. So take what you want, and leave the rest behind. Don't forget that YOU are responsible for your own actions and behavior or any damage that results from applying the techniques presented in this book. What is written herein is not to be taken as medical, legal or personal advice. And finally, don't forget that women are wonderful creatures. Use this knowledge to establish rewarding relationships (which are good for both parties) with the opposite sex. This book will help you to better understand women and their perspective, their problems and their feelings. Use it to make this world a better place.

All About Women: The Encyclopedia Of Seduction – Copyright © 2005 by Giuseppe Notte. All rights reserved. No part of this book may be used or reproduced in any manner whatsoever without written permission from the author.

1. Being a woman

1.1 If only I were a woman ...

Imagine that we are in a crappy Hollywood movie. The next morning, you wake up, stand in front of the mirror and ... Oops! You see the best tits, the best ass and the cutest face that you have ever seen — like you became a bikini model or something. Put that cucumber down — we'll have plenty of time to play later ... A lifetime actually! You will soon stop thinking like a man and learn to think like a woman.

There are some messages waiting for you on the answering machine, so check them. "Hey, Jude, it's me, Rob, from Club Maracuya. Remember, we met yesterday. I thought ... errrrr ... if it wouldn't really be a problem for you ... that we could actually ... errrrr ... meet? This is my number. Please call me back! Will ya?" How cute. Here comes the next one: "Hi, honey, it's Jack. What's up with you, sugar-pants? You were so rude yesterday ... I had to get your number from your friend — you don't mind, do you? Call me back, sweetheart! Bye!" The third message: "Hey, Jude, it's John speaking. It was nice hanging with you yesterday; too bad you had to leave to feed your dog. Hope we'll meet again. I'll call you back later. Ciao!" And this goes on for 10 or even more messages. You get bored pretty quickly. They're cute guys, but you can't date all of them, right? Right.

Fast-forward to the mall, where we do some shopping and spend "a few" dollars on the trendiest clothes and cosmetics. Then we visit the hairstylist, have our nails done and arrive home at 7 p.m. Let's get ready to party! You invite your girlfriends over. Time to choose what you will wear ... "But wait, don't I look fat in these jeans? Oh, man, maybe I shouldn't have eaten that burger for lunch today ... Oh, I'm soooo fat ..." (crying). "No, sweetie, your butt is nice," your girlfriends respond. So finally you leave the house and go to your favorite club. Of course, you don't go on foot, because Jack, who is a really good **FRIEND**, is already waiting for you in his brand-new car. He is *such* a nice guy. You really like him as a **FRIEND**. So we arrive at the club, and Jack invites you for a drink. How sweet of him ...

You're standing next to the bar. The fifth guy tonight is coming over to say, "Can I buy you a drink?" You accepted the first two offers, then quickly brushed off the rest. It's still early, and this is the fifth guy, for God's sake! How can they be so stupid as to think that spending a few dollars on drinks will increase their chances? You're already tired ... tired of these guys ... Some of them are rich. Some of them are good-looking. But they're all coming up with the same lame shit! After all, you see through them. You sense that they aren't for real ... But where *is* a real man? Among those guys who keep touching your ass when you cross the

dance floor? Or those who stand around you and your girlfriends in a circle and jump up and down like little boys waiting for their chance? Not likely ...

A few drinks later, you start to feel better. Here's the 10th guy who's invited you for a drink today; your butt must not be that bad, right? So here comes the 11th ... Oh, hi! Wow ... Look at those bulging muscles ... You would feel soooo safe with him at your side. Let's just talk a bit ... Wait! What is he doing? No, no kissing ... Yes, that's good! He's a good kisser ... No, we're not having sex! Wait ... The condom! Oh ... This feels good ... Yes ... Do it again!

Next morning, you wake up with a headache. The guy quickly throws you out with a lame excuse. What an asshole! Stupid player ... You were tricked into this ... It's only because you were drunk ... And your stupid girlfriends didn't protect you! What will they think about you after this? You're not a slut! You were just swept away by this guy ... It all happened so fast! Fuck, what an asshole ... You still can't believe he threw you out like that!

Wait, what happens in two months when your period doesn't arrive ... and you get the results of your pregnancy test ... So, would you *still* like to be a hot woman? With all these responsibilities and guys hitting on you night and day? Doesn't it get boring after a while? Maybe you should have chosen to be a little less hot ... Then you could eat cookies in bed and cry all day because of the size of your ass ... and get no guys at all!

So your homework is to think a bit. Try to think with the head of a hot girl. Your goal is to find the ideal guy. That's what every woman wants. But it's hard! You have a bunch of losers hitting on you all day in the clubs, cafés, at school — even on the street. You could have sex with all of them, but for what? All of these guys are the same, and you're bored with them. Where is a real man? Just wait a little bit, girl ... He's coming soon! (*Hint: Read on.*)

1.2 What a girl wants, what a girl needs

Welcome back to reality. I hope I made you think a bit in the previous chapter. No more cheesy Hollywood films for the rest of the book, I promise!

Just as men have many traits in common (we like nice tits, asses, cute faces and big cars — or at least, most of us do), it's the same with **women**. Even if they seem so different at times, they **have many similarities in the way they think and especially in what they're looking for in a man**. I would like to give you an exercise. I know, I know ... You hate those, but I promise you'll enjoy this one.

Call up one of your friend girls, a girl you're not dating and would consider to be a friend. You might have wanted to lay her before, or vice versa, but it doesn't matter now. Following is a list. Read it to her as if you're describing her character. I guarantee that she'll be surprised. If you did this to a random girl you didn't even know, she would be like, "Wow, how do you know all this about me? Are you psychic or something?"

THE LIST:

- 1. Sometimes you're very **emotional**. At times like these, you don't follow your common sense; it's your feelings that guide you. Like when you're with a guy, you don't think with your mind; you **don't think rationally**. Instead, you listen to your emotions and what your heart says about him.
- 2. On the other hand, you have a wild side as well. Sometimes you're into **adventures**, **challenges**, doing wild things. You can even surprise yourself by doing something you never would have thought of.
- 3. In your relationships, you usually stay **passive** and **expect the man to lead**. You want a real man who can do it. On a first date or in a longer relationship, you don't like to decide where to go. You like it when the man chooses the theater, the film and arranges everything even when he tells you where to sit.
- 4. You like **surprises**. Most of your relationships become boring as time goes by. You get used to the same routines, places and boring sex. You want variety and **changes**. You want your man to surprise you sometimes and **keep you on your toes**, to feel the excitement of something new and unknown happening. You want a man who is creative enough to surprise you.
- 5. **Little details** are important to you. You always take a look at a man's hands or shoes to see if they're clean. Sometimes **romantic** moments, like holding your boyfriend's hand, hugging and kissing, or just receiving a little, thoughtful something, are much more important than big, expensive gifts. Getting a postcard or a phone call and knowing that your boyfriend, or someone you care for, is thinking about you can make you really happy. Such small details can mean more to you than a big bank account or an expensive car.
- 6. You are oftentimes mildly **critical of yourself**. You stand in front of the mirror, looking here and there and noticing if something isn't right. You're looking for minor flaws or imperfections on your body. You hate to admit it, but sometimes you might even enjoy this. At times like this, you need a little validation. A compliment about your looks or an inquiring glance from a man can increase your self-esteem.
- 7. You also have very difficult, self-critical **periods**. When this happens, it's not easy to tolerate you, and sometimes you wish that everybody would go away and leave you alone. You might be rude to people and guys even when you don't intend to be.

(Note: Women have periods. While periods don't directly control men, women's menstruation cycles play an important role in their lives. They sometimes get out of bed on the wrong side and are influenced too much by their emotions. A woman is more likely to brush you off on a bad day or when she's having her period.)

- 8. Deep inside, **you still believe in love at first sight**. But it never really happened to you. You have a picture of the ideal man in your head, your Prince Charming, who will sweep you off your feet, put you on his white horse and rescue you from the castle. In each of your new relationships, you fantasize about it being perfect, but it never is. Your boyfriends might measure up to 60–70 percent of your ideal guy, but something is always missing.
- 9. When dating a new guy, it usually takes four to five dates before you say you're going out with him. **You want the man to initiate** the first kiss, and **you** usually **test a man**. You set up hoops and expect him to jump through them. Sometimes you test men too much.
- 10. About sex: You like it when it "just happens." You don't like to plan anything in advance whether it's the first time or the 100th. You like to be swept away by the moment. In bed, you stay passive, but take control when your wild side comes out. You like to experiment and try out new things.

So, what was the response? Was she stunned? How did you know all that about her? Don't tell her you read about it in a book, OK? © Remember what the list says? Excitement and surprises. Keep her on her toes. She'll be speculating about where you got this info. Joke with her. Tell her you have a sixth sense or whatever. Just don't tell the truth. If you want to strengthen the effect, you can even memorize the list. It's not that hard. You might try acting like a prophet and "read" the list items in her cards, her palm or something else.

The list is a general description of an average girl who is in her early 20s and likes going out to clubs. Although it's an amusing tool, it will help you get to know women better. Read that list many times, and **notice the keywords**: a real man, staying passive, expecting him to lead, emotions, excitement, variety, little details, being critical about herself and others, periods, love at first sight, Prince Charming. I'm going to talk about these in detail. For men, keywords would be something like: hot girls, good sex, cute faces, big tits and sexy butts, rational thinking, racing and competition, challenge, sports and cars. Compare the two, and you'll begin to realize why it seems so hard to understand women at times. Ready for more fun? Read on.

1.3 Understanding women

To most men, women seem like irrational creatures who make no sense at all. It's naturally true if you view it from our perspective. But, if you try to think with a woman's head for a while, it will be like turning on the lights in a dark room. To achieve this, you'll need to consider three factors: the impact that society has on women, how their brains are wired and how evolution affects their instincts.

1. UNDERSTANDING SOCIAL CONDITIONING

A hundred years ago, women who had sex or children before or outside marriage were labeled whores. Some girls still grow up with "no sex before marriage" drilled into their heads by their parents. A guy who lays a new woman every day is considered a "player." But even today, after the sexual revolution, a girl who does the same thing is called a "slut." From early childhood, girls are told by their mothers and fathers to be careful about dating and men.

I once read **a story** about a 15-year-old girl. She gave a blow job to a classmate, with whom she was in love. After the breakup, the guy went around telling the whole school about the blow job, and everyone ridiculed the girl. In the end, she had to change schools.

Social restrictions remain with women throughout their lives **due to the influence of friends**, **colleagues and GUYS**. Yes, you read it right: guys. We are also influenced by the world and social expectations — **we're used to women withholding sex**. **We EXPECT them to do so**. If a girl gives herself to you on the first date, you won't be able to escape the thought that she has done this many times already. After all, if she's not afraid of being despised for such an act, she must be a "slut," right?

Even when she's on her own, social influences are wired so deeply into a girl's brain that she might not be able to have sex with a guy she wants, but hardly knows. A girl I know was brought up in a strict Christian manner. At the age of 19, she tried to have sex with a guy she loved. She ended up crying and being unable to continue — just before the act. She had to marry someone she didn't love, then divorce him in two years to get rid of the whole "no sex before marriage" dogma planted deep in her brain by her mother over the years. It took her another year and an understanding partner to be able to enjoy sex.

There is a term you need to know: "chick logic." It's supposed to mean that women might act strange from a man's rational viewpoint and seem totally illogical. That's the definition; to understand it, we have to consider the reasons described above. Chick logic is about looking for approval from you and her friends. In other words, she needs to rationalize having sex. Here's an example of chick logic in action:

A woman will often go out to a club with her friends to "have fun." She doesn't expect to find "the One," but she enjoys the attention and validation she gets from guys trying to pick her up. She will quickly get drunk on all the free drinks she receives. And guess why her girlfriends are there? To protect her from leaving with a guy. However, they're not really protecting her from the guys, but rather from herself. If she has sex with a guy, she'll be labeled a "slut" by either her girlfriends or herself. Still, she secretly wants to have sex! And this is even more tricky: If she leaves with a guy and he fucks her, she can say that she "lost control," or it was "all because of the alcohol" or "because her girlfriends didn't protect her well enough." This way she can have sex without having to deal with her own guilt and her girlfriends' judgment.

And do you know why she needs the alcohol? She needs it to bypass her LOGICAL BRAIN. There's great tension inside her when she's about to have a one-night stand. Her body is getting aroused and telling her to have sex, but her chick logic kicks in and says: "What are you doing? You don't even know this guy! Your friends will think you're a slut! He might even be a stalker! And what if you want something more lasting? This guy is so cute. You don't want to seem like a slut to him!" Of course, when it happens, she won't be thinking so clearly. But she will feel a DEEP URGE in her guts to stop. This results in her saying, "No, we're not having sex!" while rubbing her pussy against your cock and moaning. If you can arouse her enough, her sexual instincts will bypass her logical brain, and the gates will open wide.

There is also a common misconception that women don't enjoy sex. They do. Put this into your head in capital letters: **WOMEN ENJOY SEX JUST AS MUCH AS MEN DO**. Have you ever heard a woman screaming during an orgasm? Believe me, they enjoy it a hundred times more than we do. It's just that to get rid of her chick logic and other factors I'm going to mention, she needs time. Don't you watch *Sex and the City*? You should, because you can learn a lot from that series. Or just buy a *Cosmopolitan* magazine, and read all the tips on making women's sex lives better and their orgasms stronger.

Apart from chick logic, there's another big difference imposed on men and women by society: the way we are brought up. From their early years, girls long to be Cinderella saved by Prince Charming. They dream of romance every day. Disney films have added to the fantasy. Guys, on the other hand, play with Matchbox cars and dream of becoming football stars or astronauts. We are fascinated by sports, competition and challenge. What do boys talk about? Whose Matchbox is bigger and better, who's better at sports, whose favorite football star is cooler, etc. Later, this becomes whose car is faster and bigger, whose girl is hotter and who earns more.

Such kinds of **competition attract women less**. They play with Barbie dolls and dress like little princesses or brides. They talk about whose Barbie is cuter and role-play with their dolls. During their teens, they fantasize about their favorite pop stars or dream of falling in love. Later, this turns into competition in the form of looks, bickering about their relationships and each other, and chatting about the latest trends in fashion. Instead of challenges, **they are moved by relationships**, **fashion**, **romance** and **drama**. At least, most of them are. While you would rather watch sports or read a magazine about cars, your girl watches soaps and reads romance novels instead.

You will never be able to truly escape this conditioning. Most women will always want to hold your hand and watch the moon rise with the stars even if you'd rather be having sex or watching your favorite sports. So take this into account, and don't blame them for it.

2. UNDERSTANDING THE WAY WOMEN ARE WIRED

Compare the way women are built to our body structure. They are generally shorter, thinner and weaker, in other words, more fragile. Their most important genitals are inside their bodies: the vagina, the womb, etc. We could say that **while men are donors** (givers), **women are acceptors** (receivers). During intercourse, they need to open up, not just physically, but emotionally as well.

Just as nature has its cycles in the form of changing seasons, girls have theirs with their monthly periods. Because of this and all of the above, they tend to focus more on the inside and listen to their emotions. Women live somewhat in harmony with their emotions — much more so than we do. Girls will often make decisions based on their feelings and not on rational thinking. That's why they seem so illogical at times.

Social expectations also appear in the form of looks. **Women** are required to look like supermodels — that's what is planted into their minds by the media. Because of being more sensitive emotionally, they **need constant validation** from parents, friends and boyfriends. If she looks into a mirror, she will instantly think, "Hasn't my butt gotten bigger? Don't I look fat in these pants? Is my cleavage tight enough?" It's no wonder women have more plastic surgery than men.

It's easy for a girl to get carried away on the ocean of her emotions. You forget to bring her a flower on your anniversary, and she bursts into tears, thinking, "He doesn't love me anymore. Is it another woman? Have I gotten fat? Do I look bad?" and so forth. It's like jumping on a roller coaster — and we don't know where it's going to stop. Women can easily make a big deal out of the smallest things and tend to attribute other problems they may have to their looks. You raise your voice, and she cries all day, thinking you don't love her.

Furthermore, **girls can be very indecisive at times**. Which clothes to wear, where to go, which film to see, whether to leave her previous boyfriend or not — she can get lost among the emotional waves quickly. As a result, **she expects the Man** (who is stronger and more resolute and confident) **to free her from this responsibility**, to make the decisions himself and to lead her. You will read much more about this in the next chapter.

Let's talk more about sex. **Sex for women is a much bigger decision than it is for men**. They are giving themselves to you, not just physically, but emotionally as well. **To enjoy sex**, **a girl needs to open up emotionally and** has to be there **mentally as well**. Certain thoughts will always surface in a woman's mind, and in order to be able to relax and enjoy sex, she has to bypass them. This is social conditioning: the possibility of pregnancy, your not loving her, your leaving her after intercourse or your possibly being a stalker.

Most girls need to feel totally safe and comfortable in your company before they can free themselves from such worries. But, once they do, they can experience bigger orgasms than most men. Although this may make your life a bit harder, realize that it also means you can overcome social restrictions more quickly. If a woman feels you truly "match" and she is comfortable in your company, she will never withhold sex.

Although each and every woman is different, they have many traits in common, and their needs change as they grow older. Young girls are less experienced, and they are usually looking for an older man. In their early 20s, many women are moved by overwhelming emotions, excitement, adventure and the feeling of danger. It's no wonder Indiana Jonestype adventurers or bad boys, skaters and those living dangerous lifestyles attract more chicks. Just as young people of both sexes do, they are seeking their identity and happiness. Part of this involves getting short-term satisfaction from alcohol, drugs, cigarettes and the adrenaline that a dangerous guy can inject into their lives.

As they grow older, their biological clocks start ticking, and they realize that if they want children, they have until their mid-30s. Thus, they start looking for a man who can provide for them and with whom they can create a family. Some girls get married in their mid- or late-20s, then quickly get bored with marriage and the lack of exciting sex. Women develop their sexuality over time, and their sex drive increases. Many of them are willing to cheat on their husbands if a powerful guy appears.

These are rough generalizations. Different kinds of girls respond to different kinds of male characteristics and personality types. You don't have to become a bad boy or live a dangerous lifestyle to attract women. First, there are common Manly traits to which most girls respond. Second, you will decide the types of women that suit your personality the best and act in ways to attract them. If you're an artist, you won't have success with artistic

girls by changing your personality and becoming a bad boy. But, by developing Manly traits in yourself and getting experience, you will be able to attract the kinds of women you want. I am going to talk more about this later in the book.

3. EVOLUTION AND INSTINCTS

I'm sure you've watched the Discovery Channel once or twice. **In the animal kingdom**, **there is an interesting concept**. In a herd of elephants, for example, there are many females, but only one male, who sexes all of them. This is **the alpha male**. If another male wants to have sex with the alpha male's females, he has to challenge him, which results in a fight. Either the challenging male wins and takes the harem, or the alpha male remains in his position. Females are designed to give birth to one or a few offspring at a time. A male can spread his semen among the females in his herd and have many progeny. This process guarantees that the offspring inherit the most powerful genes and that there is a strong alpha male to protect them.

How does this look when projected to us? During the Stone Age, women wanted a man who was powerful enough to hunt down prey and protect the immediate family and the clan from danger. Since then, values have changed. Women are looking for somebody to bring home money, take care of the kids and provide for the whole family. Safety comes in the form of cash. Still, many girls are turned on by strong men. Why is this?

It's because of basic instincts wired into us by evolution. Even though society changes, our instincts stay with us. Basic social values, like attraction to money, come in the form of thoughts. A girl thinks, "I'm getting older; I need a man to settle down with." She is even willing to make a compromise and marry a less attractive male just to fulfill societal expectations. On the other hand, instincts come in the form of emotions. When she is with a strong male and he puts his powerful arms around her, she feels a sudden safety. She is not going to try to explain it to herself; it's just "good to be with him."

Can you imagine a girl who's about to get married going out with her girlfriends and ending up in bed with a stranger, who fucks her without a condom? I don't want to disillusion you, but this has happened many times. I've seen players pull it off. And what's more, you can't even blame the poor girl for it. It's in her guts. She is about to get married to a guy who will provide for her. Then a powerful Man comes and triggers such deep emotions in her that she can't hold herself back. Her instincts take over her body. She loses control. It's something she hasn't experienced in quite a while or maybe ever.

What can we learn from this? A girl meets two kinds of guys in her life: the providers and the real Men. She will marry a provider and have sex with the real Man. The real Man creates

such powerful emotions in her with his presence that she is ready to overcome social restrictions with him. And that's what she is secretly longing for: her Prince Charming appearing in the form of a Man. She waits for that moment to come for her entire life.

Regarding this, I have to tell you that **WOMEN TEST MEN occasionally**. They will consciously create certain situations to see how you react. A woman will always test how far she can go with you and push to the limit. **These tests are used to sort out the males who are not powerful enough and to find a real Man**. If you fall for it, you lose your chance. But, **if you act like a real Man**, **she will be instantly attracted to you and won't care** so much **about your looks** — as long as you are neat and well groomed.

There are many tests that women use mostly to see if you act consistently within your frame of a Man. For instance, you approach a girl in a club, and she turns her back to you. If you gently but confidently turn her toward you, she will see that you're not another average Joe and talk to you. Some women test a lot; some don't test at all. It mostly depends on her personality, her experience and the number of men she has dealt with. The key to passing these tests is to do what you want, and don't say what you think she wants to hear. Show her that you have your own opinions, you have your own desires, and you are not afraid to act on them. With experience, you will learn to recognize these tests and pass them by reacting consistently.

In conclusion, keep three things in mind:

- 1. **Never judge women by their words**; **judge them by their actions**. If a girl says, "We are not having sex!" while rubbing her pussy against your cock and moaning, don't listen to her.
- 2. Women speak a different language. Their language is emotions and not just words. When talking to a woman, use this knowledge to have a bigger effect. If you don't understand her at times, attribute it to her swirling emotions, or just ask her, "How do you feel?" A woman's keyword is FEEL.
- 3. Women come with powerful instincts packed inside. To help them overcome social restrictions, try to bring out their instincts by acting like a real Man.

In the next chapter, I am going to broaden your horizons and tell you how to be "the Man."

2. How to be the Man

2.1 What a real Man is like and what it means to lead

I talked a lot about "being a Man" in the previous chapter. But what do I mean by this? This is the most difficult part to understand. Once you really get it down, you will have no problems with women.

If you ask them, 999 out of 1,000 women will say that they are waiting for "the Man." Still, the concept itself is very vague. A girl will "feel" when she is with a "Man," but that doesn't help you too much, does it? In order to understand it from our viewpoint, we will look at genetics again. As I said in *chapter 1.3*, women are acceptors, while men are donors. An acceptor can choose whether to accept what the donor gives or not. Hot girls are spoiled by the numerous unconditional offers they get and usually reject them flatly.

They love to remind us that it's they who choose. But this is not ALWAYS the case. A hot woman will meet many average Joes every day. Of course, she could select any of them if she wanted. But what she craves is a real Man. And here's the twist: That Man is not a real Man for her alone, but for all other women as well. He has qualities to which all girls will respond. It's wired inside them. He is now the one in the position of power. So, in the end, she will have to do the dirty work and seduce him. Women don't spend hours in front of the mirror just to be sure that they look their best, but also to ensure that when a real Man comes, he notices them.

And this is **how an ideal seduction looks**. The man CHOOSES first. He expresses his interest in the woman through his attentions. If he is POWERFUL enough, the woman will like him. But she will also know that he has CHOICES, so she will try to seduce the Man and tame him to stay with her. So **what do I mean by "powerful"?** Looks, money, fame or influence? None of the above. These are just external qualities that can trick a woman into feeling that you are powerful. **True power comes from the inside**. **A real Man will make her feel like a woman just by his presence**. Even if he is naked and **without** his **money**, **car** and **clothes**, his power radiates from within.

Back to evolution, the most important thing to show your woman is that she can feel safe with you. **The Man has to be POWERFUL enough to LEAD her**. But, if you are in a restaurant and she is the one who has to choose the table where you sit, then has to order the food while listening to you say, "You are soooo beautiful. I don't deserve such a beauty," what will she think? Is this man capable of protecting her? Does she feel safe with him? No. So the No. 1 quality a Man has is the ability to lead. *Here are the other two as well:*

- 1. A Man knows how to lead, and he is confident in his role.
- 2. A Man always has options, self-respect and is never needy.
- 3. A Man knows how to treat her.

Let's look at No. 1 again: *A Man knows how to lead, and he is confident in his role*. You know how hard it is to be the captain of a ship? You are constantly forced to make decisions and take responsibilities. A slight sign of uncertainty is enough for you to lose the faith of your whole crew and probably the ship as well. How could 40 people follow their captain if he showed signs of hesitation and uncertainty? If you were in the crew, would you risk your life for such a captain? Not likely. Would you do it for a confident and resolute one who is always certain, even if he makes mistakes at times? Yes.

It's almost the same with women. There are two people in a boat: you and she. You are the captain. She expects you to lead. At the first sign of uncertainty, she will jump out of your boat and choose another one. You will constantly have to be on your toes when making decisions. No one cares if it's a good or bad decision; it's you who will take the responsibility in the end. Young guys can't take responsibilities. To be a Man, you have to learn that first. Each and every decision you make will have a consequence. You can postpone making it, but sooner or later, you will have to decide. And it might be too late by then.

I haven't talked enough about **confidence** yet. Hesitation is not a Manly trait. **A Man knows** what he WANTS and ISN'T AFRAID to TAKE IT. When you make decisions, BE SURE OF YOURSELF. It's a part of LEADING and taking RESPONSIBILITIES. You choose the restaurant where you will go with your date. You choose the table where you will sit. The food might be bad, and the people at the nearby table might be annoying, but who cares? If you are confident, my friend, you can get away with almost ANYTHING. Yes, ANYTHING. Read that sentence again.

Psychologists did an interesting experiment: There was a photocopy machine in a school where many students were always in line during breaks waiting their turn to make copies. A guy walked up to the machine with a banana in his hand. He cut to the front of the line and said, "I need to copy these papers right now, so I can eat my banana before the end of the break." He did it casually and confidently, as if it were a normal everyday thing to cut to the front of the queue. But what happened next? Nothing. He stood in the front of the line, did what he wanted and then went to eat his banana. And no one complained! There was no fight, no loud words. This incident is just one of the many that show you can get away with ANY BULLSHIT as long as you are consistent with it and act confident enough in your role.

There is a difference between real and false confidence, however. A confident person is calm and cool, like a sniper waiting for his turn in the bushes. When such a person walks into a room, everyone is looking at him. And not because he walks so stiffly that they are laughing at him! That would be a falsely confident person, someone who is either annoying or funny because of visibly overcompensating for his insecurities. Typical signs are: trying to get attention by being loud, harassing somebody either verbally or physically to prove something to onlookers or being stiffly formal and walking like a robot with a serious expression instead of a smile.

But, if you don't have real confidence yet, how can you fake it and not appear to be faking it? Isn't this a paradox? Not really. With experience, you will be able to LOOSEN UP in your ROLE and seem very casual from the outside. A beginning stand-up comic is very nervous when he takes the stage for the first time. He has butterflies in his stomach. An experienced comic will take the stage as if nothing unusual is happening. No one notices that what he has is a kind of fake confidence. He still has butterflies in his stomach, but he has learned to deal with it and hide those feelings.

And that, my friend, comes with EXPERIENCE. If you have never kissed a woman, don't expect to be confidently kissing 10 women a day tomorrow. This book is not a magic bullet. You will have to practice. You will have to experiment. You will have to put in the time yourself. I can't do that for you. But, when you do, you'll get the EXPERIENCE.

So back to our list, the second point is: A Man always has options, self-respect and is never needy. Yes. What do I mean by having OPTIONS? Initially, the woman is in the position of power. She is the one who chooses. And she knows this very well. When you approach her, she can reject you. When it's time to kiss her, she can say no. When you want to have sex, she can refuse it. That's all true. But how do we make sure that she doesn't have a choice? Ha! By being a Man. She will see that you are one of the few "select" instantly and know this is her one and only chance to meet somebody like you. She knows you can move on and get another woman whenever you want.

By the way, I tricked you. **A Man** who is capable of **leading well won't leave her any time to think**. He will appear out of the blue and talk to her. He will kiss her when the right moment comes without asking anything. She won't have a choice. At least she will feel as if she doesn't have a choice. And that's what she has wanted all along. To be swept away by the moment, with no other choice or time to think about social restrictions.

Let's talk a bit about **SELF-RESPECT**. People who think they are worth nothing or want to be treated like shit WILL BE treated like shit. **How do you expect anyone to respect you if you don't even respect yourself?** Be able to stand up for yourself whether you're dealing

with women or men. How you see yourself and what you think of yourself influence your behavior, and people will respond to you accordingly. Being depressed and having negative thoughts will get you nowhere. **Your thoughts form your personality**. Those who have negative thoughts and see everything as gray will attract such things into their lives. People who learn to control their thoughts and strengthen themselves with positive affirmations become successful.

"I don't deserve this. I'm such a loser. I'm worth nothing. My life is a waste. Nothing works for me. I'll never get any girls." **Eliminate** those **destructive thoughts for good**. "I'm a real Man. I know what I want, and I know how to get it. I have goals in my life, and I am motivated to reach them. I'm successful with women and successful in everything else. I enjoy my smallest achievements and stay proudly on my path whatever life brings. I'm open to new experiences and ideas, learning from my faults and able to change myself in a good direction." **That's what you should say to yourself every day**.

As I mentioned, another tool in your arsenal is **not being NEEDY**. You don't need her. But why don't you need her when she's so beautiful? And you've never had such a beautiful creature even talk to you ... Stop now before your legs start shaking, will you? **Lesson No. 1: NEVER EVER put a woman on a pedestal**. Have your SELF-RESPECT, and don't cling to her like a baby. **Never put her above you**. There are so many guys putting her up there that **it's not a challenge to her anymore**. We will talk more about this in the next chapter.

In ancient times, the most successful cavemen, the Men, always had OPTIONS. They could choose literally any of the women they wanted. Did they put those women on a pedestal? No. They treated them like normal people — people who had desirable physical characteristics and might be capable of giving birth to their powerful children. Think a bit. If you were Brad Pitt and you could have all the women you wanted, would you put any of them above you? No way! And don't laugh: When a real Man comes into her life, it will be like Brad Pitt appearing.

Be careful though. Girls know what's up. **Somebody with options will never show off or brag about it**. He won't say, "Oh, I have three girls, Vanessa, Mary and Janice. It's so hard to choose between them. It's not easy being a player these days." He will act like **a Man** instead, somebody who **is willing to go his own way without trying to meet anyone's expectations**. You don't need to have eight girlfriends to have **the attitude** I'm talking about. Even if you had to move to another planet without knowing anyone, your Manliness **should radiate from your personality**, **confidence and behavior**.

A hot girl always has many men on the go. There are at least 10 numbers she can call to have an army of guys flocking to her door immediately, just like hot guys who keep many

girlfriends at the same time. Usually the girls even know about each other, but the guy is so cool that they don't care. Of course, you don't have to keep a harem if it's not to your taste. Initially, one girl will be more than enough to handle. But you should still **keep a few phone numbers in your pocket**. **Don't stop seeing other women because of dating a hot girl**. Even if you've kissed her or had sex with her, that doesn't mean you're already in a relationship and she is deeply in love with you. If you feel like it, call up some of those numbers, go out and have some fun. See? It's again about having OPTIONS.

The third thing on our list is: A Man knows how to treat her. A Man is a gentleman. He will be attentive, opening doors and pulling out chairs for her, and know how to care for her. Of course, he does all this in a confident way. Girls mostly encounter two types of guys: One of them is the average chump, whom she is bored to death with, who will put her on a pedestal, fulfill each and every one of her wishes and so on. The other is the typical jerk who acts Manly at times, but doesn't know how to treat her. Usually she will stay with the jerk instead of the average fool, but won't be satisfied with either of them deep inside.

But a real Man knows HOW TO TREAT A WOMAN. And that's not just about confidence. Never forget that **women are not objects or devices of experimentation**. They are wonderful human beings and everyday people, just like you. So treat them equally. They have bad days and good days. They pee and shit. And **they especially like thoughtful words** and little surprises. Remember *chapter 1.2*? Sometimes being thoughtful or giving a little present will mean much more to a woman than a huge bank account.

Hot girls are self-validation junkies. They crave attention and appreciation. If you give her too much, like an average Joe would, she will get bored and leave you quickly. If you give her too little, she will end up seeking it from other guys. The best strategy is to REWARD her with validation. It's a powerful tool. This will be a crude comparison, but think dog training. When the dog does something bad, he is scolded. But, when he does something to the liking of his owner, he is rewarded with a treat. It's the same with women. Reward her when she does something that you like. You don't have to buy presents. Kind words like, "I was thinking about you, remembered your beautiful smile, and it made me happy!" are usually more than enough.

On the contrary, never give in to wacky wishes of girls. It's easy to go from one extreme to the other. If she wants to go shopping while you're watching your favorite sports program, tell her to wait or go alone. Then another time when she doesn't expect it, say that you decided to skip watching your favorite sports today and you want to take her out instead. The key is in the attitude. In the first case, she's being insistent. In the second, you are rewarding her for being a "good girl." You are the Man, and it's your decision. You are CONSISTENT

within your MANLY FRAME, while being KIND and CARING at the same time. She will be happy because of this.

By the way, why don't you get bored while playing sports? Because of competition and CHALLENGE. It's the same with girls. Keep them on their toes. Be a CHALLENGE. Women love that. It's part of being a Man and having OPTIONS. Show her that you are in control. Refuse what she wants today; give it to her tomorrow when she's not expecting it. Push her away; then pull her back. This creates tension and excitement. Compliment her when you feel like it, but never overdo it. If you wake up every morning and tell her how beautiful she is, it will get boring quickly. But, if you tell her randomly, when she doesn't expect it, it will make her happy.

So compliment women, and give them kind words. Show your girl that you care for her and think about her. Surprise her sometimes, but NEVER OVERDO ANY OF THESE. They are wonderful tools as long as they keep their value. **If a product goes into mass production, it loses its luxury worth in the market and becomes commercial**. If there were an Eiffel Tower in every city, would it be a curiosity? No. So treat the above tools the same way. Think twice before using them, but make sure you use them AT TIMES.

Last, here is another exercise. Some of the ideas described above might seem strange or unfounded. I want you to discover their power on your own. Read this chapter again a few more times, and think about it. Keywords are **confidence**, **leading**, **making her feel safe**, **taking responsibility**, **not being needy**, **having self-respect**, **knowing how to be a gentleman** and **knowing how to treat women**. When you feel that you have these concepts down in your head, ask a girl you know how she would define a "real Man." If you can collect your thoughts and tell her about the topics behind the keywords I just mentioned, she will be astonished.

2.2 Typical errors men make and how to avoid them

I'm sure you've had a date with a girl that didn't go the way you expected. It happens to everyone. Just realize that it's not a matter of some invisible cloud following you around. **How women respond to you depends on your personality and Manliness**. There are common errors men tend to make when going out with a woman. Small details count a lot in the big picture. A little bit of inconsistency within your Manly frame, and you lose her. This is what I'll be talking about in this chapter.

The biggest mistake you can make is to treat a woman as if she is different by putting her on a pedestal or looking down on her and treating her bad. Most guys, on seeing an

attractive woman, are like, "OMG, she is soooo hot and beautiful. I don't really deserve such a girl ..." Why? Why don't you deserve her? Because she is hot? Is she above you in any way? No. Is she more than you? No. She is a human being, just like you and me. Women expect you to be a bit above them. They like it when they can look up to a man and not only because you are taller. Have qualities that she can admire in you, the most important of which are your personality and ability to lead her in the right direction.

Flowers and presents. They are wonderful tools for keeping a relationship and showing a woman how important she is to you — but **not for seducing her**. It's a common misconception that you will lay her by buying her flowers or gifts. A Man would **reward her with that**. But why should she be rewarded when you don't even know her? When you go out with a girl, she is usually a complete stranger to you. Do you buy flowers for strangers? No. Do you send gifts to strangers? No. It's OK to do so when you're in love with her, and she's in love with you. But please, forget those tools for the first few weeks at least. **Most guys who try to date her will bring flowers or chocolate bonbons**. She just laughs at such lame attempts. Separate yourself from the crowd. Be different. **A Man doesn't need to stand in line**. He knows what he wants, and he knows how to get it.

Complimenting. It's easy to go the wrong way with compliments. A compliment here and there is fine, but avoid overdoing them. They get boring quickly. How you compliment her matters a lot: "Oh, you look soooo beautiful!" — This is lame. You are putting her on a pedestal. You praise her looks — she has heard this a thousand times already. Her looks are genetics. She can't influence that. Another bad one: "Nice ass!" — Macho-style compliment. This is again a stupid way to do it. Compliment your buddy's girl to your buddy like that, but not the girl you're seeing. If she's hot, she likes to be complimented because of her personality, style or general outlook. No one does that. She'll be flattered by your noticing it. Tell her she has a beautiful smile and that you like it when she smiles. Tell her she has nice earrings and that you like her taste. Tell her that you like her perfume and that it's one of your favorites.

Compliments should always be short, to the point and uncomplicated. "Your eyes look like a hundred shining stars in the moonlight." — Leave this one for the poets. Just say: "Your eyes are beautiful. I like looking at them." The way you speak is very important. Be calm, relaxed and not overly excited when complimenting her. Speak slowly, look into her eyes and smile. Charm her like a real Man. Deliver compliments in a slow, soothing, seductive voice. Don't act like Romeo and overdo the seductive part, because it will sound stupid. Be casually confident in your role.

Money. Money is a sign of power. If a guy earns a lot, he must be very successful in life. It also provides safety in the form of financial stability. Then again, a real Man won't need

much cash to seduce a girl. She will feel safe with him, and there will be no need for the extra financial support. Never waste your money on women or give useless presents. It's OK to invite her to the movies or pay on the first date. But, if you do, expect her to pay on the second. If she doesn't offer, ask her to contribute. Don't force her to pay the whole bill though; a Man is always a gentleman.

If you pay on the first date and she doesn't offer to pay at least her part on the second, that's a sign that you might have found a gold-digger chick. Avoid those. Spend money on a woman when you want to and not when she demands it. If she begs you to buy her some new clothes or something, firmly refuse. But, if you are in a relationship, and you would like to see her in sexy lingerie, buy some as a present. Do you see the difference between the two frames? The latter is your decision and not something she "ordered."

A note for **rich guys**: **It's OK to spend money on a girl at your level**. If you eat at the trendiest, most expensive restaurant every day and you can afford it, don't take her to some cheap place. Take her into your reality. If you drive a Ferrari, don't go on your date by bus. And don't boast about "how cool you are" either. And finally, don't buy her off. If she becomes demanding and asks for too much in your reality, refuse it.

The same holds true for **guys who are not so wealthy**. Spend money on the girl at your level. If you can't afford to go to a trendy restaurant yourself, don't scrimp and save just to take a woman there. Choose a cheap but romantic place instead where the food is good. Or go for no-cost dates like a romantic walk in the park. **Never try to hide your financial situation**. If you have a cheap car, don't rent an expensive one to take a woman on a date. She will find out about your financial situation sooner or later. **Don't forget: Women will love you because you are a Man and NOT BECAUSE OF YOUR MONEY.**

Going physical. Not touching her or initiating kissing or sex is a big problem. It is the man who always has to make the first move. The girl will give signs that she is ready; you have to read them and advance accordingly. If you force going physical too early, she will freak out and run away. If you do it too late, she will think that you're afraid. It's also necessary to build the foundation. She won't be comfortable kissing you if you've never touched her before. Touch her occasionally on the arms, shoulders or hands in a casual way. It's a normal, everyday thing to do. There's no need to go to the other extreme and become a touchy-feely guy though. And don't forget, you always have to be the one initiating; she won't do it for you. When you see that she's ready, go in for the kiss and so on.

Sense of humor. In most surveys of women about the ideal guy, humor comes up as one of the most important qualities for a man to have. **Never be too serious on your dates**. Enjoy your time together, laugh at each other's jokes and, when the situation calls for something

funny, tell her something funny. You're not expected to joke like a stand-up comic would; just be yourself. Everyone has a little sense of humor, and that's more than enough. If she's attracted to you, she will laugh at even your lamest high school jokes and think you are a funny guy. So don't hold back, and don't keep a straight face for the whole time. Self-irony is also a good quality to have. Be able to laugh at yourself, not just at other people. And finally, smile. You can never smile too much. Women love a Man who smiles a lot — it makes both you and your girl feel good.

Friends zone. Probably the thing you dread most in your interactions with women is hearing: "Let's just be friends, OK?" You don't want them as friends. I'm sure you have already heard that line and have a few girl "friends." You might have even used it on girls who didn't meet your standards. Well, those words mean that you fucked something up. To put it bluntly, you were a pussy and not a Man. Usually, you either get together with a woman or she brushes you off sooner or later. But, in this case, you acted like a typical "nice" guy. You don't want that, right? So stop acting the way you did to get there. Possible reasons follow.

Being a mama's boy. Girls sense it instantly and leave. If you're over 25 and still living with your parents, maybe you should think about that just a bit. Looking to your mother for decisions, running to her when something goes wrong, not being able to separate from your parents or take responsibility, asking their advice on everything, having no goals of your own, being unable to provide for yourself, lacking independence. Are these the qualities of a Man? How could you provide for somebody else, when you can't even provide for yourself? Look at yourself objectively and, if you recognize any of these traits in your personality, change them for good.

Being macho instead of being a Man. Yep. It's a common misconception that women want machos. No, they want a Man. A macho is loud, bold and aggressive instead of being confident. He's trying to hide his insecurities with such behavior. Never mix the two. A Man is by no means aggressive. He is calm and cool. Machos are sometimes full of themselves. A Man knows his limits and never boasts about himself. He knows that people around him will look up to him, and he doesn't need to look for their approval. Even if machos get women, it's because of the jerk side of them. You don't need that to get the hottest girls. Keep this in mind, and when you experiment with leading and becoming a Man, avoid the macho trap. If you are shy, don't overcompensate by becoming arrogant and aggressive. Advance slowly. Confidence and leading will come with practice.

2.3 Dressing, working out, taking care of yourself

I hope I don't need to stress how important it is to be well groomed, neat and looking your best when meeting girls. They spend hours in front of the mirror to look good; we can at least be hygienic. Shave every day, wash your hair, use deodorant, wash your cock — this is common knowledge. Cut the nails on your hands and feet, and clean the dirt from under your nails. Use foot-antiperspirants if your feet smell bad. Clean your shoes often, and always iron your clothes. Mind the color of your socks, and don't mix them. Put on a clean shirt and underwear every day.

Such small details are very important to women. When making your first impression, they will judge you based on this. Even if you don't consider yourself good-looking, there are certain steps you can take to LOOK YOUR BEST. You don't have to look as if you just stepped out of some fashion magazine, but a Man knows how to dress and how to look fine. Just by doing that, he leaves a good impression on people. If you look like a nerd, you're making your own life harder. So take my advice:

- 1. Go to a hairstylist. I suggest visiting the best salon in your city. Don't spare money on your looks. Ask the stylist what hairstyle he/she thinks would be the best for your face and character. Just by getting a stylish and cool haircut, you can change your image a lot. If long hair goes well with your face, wear it that way (but keep it clean!). If shorter or totally bald is better, go for that look. Don't be afraid to ask your hairstylist; he's there to help. If you don't want to spend that much money, go to the best salon once, show your new haircut to your favorite hairstylist and have him/her cut it that way afterwards.
- 2. *Glasses*. **They usually don't look good**. Drop them, and **wear contact lenses instead**. There are very few people who look good in glasses. If you have to wear them, try to find a pair that suits the shape of your face. **Sunglasses can make you look cool in the summer**. Just choose them wisely. You can ask a clerk at the shop to help you find a good pair.
- 3. Shaving. Shave your face, or trim your beard. If you have too much hair on your body, trim it or depilate it to make yourself look smoother. It doesn't matter whether you keep your pubic hair or shave it off, but if you keep it, make sure that it's well trimmed and looks neat. If you wear sleeveless T-shirts, shave your armpits.
- 4. *Dressing*. This is one of the most important things about your looks. Go to the trendiest club in your city and take a look at how guys dress. If you think it might suit your image, look at what models wear. **Go to the nearest shopping center with one of your friend girls** (or, if you have to go alone, ask the shop clerk), **and buy some stylish new clothes**. Read fashion

magazines or men's magazines. Always dress fashionably. Find a style that suits your personality which is trendy at the same time.

5. Working out. Take up a sport. If you're fat, lose weight. I recommend diets that separate protein from carbs (not to be confused with low-carb diets, which can be very unhealthy), but talk to your dietitian before doing anything crazy. I also advocate becoming a vegetarian, because it's good for your health and helps you keep yourself in balance. But, before you do anything, always ask for advice from an expert, or consult the proper books!

If you are slim, put on some muscle. It's a good idea to look buffed up a little. You don't have to be another Schwarzenegger, but take good care of your body. If you don't want to work out, take up martial arts or dancing. Both provide good instruction in how to be a Man.

6. Take care of yourself, both inside and out. If you have acne or another skin disease, get the proper treatment. You have to take care of such small problems to **be comfortable in your own body**. That's key. For the inside, give yourself time to relax and try to live a less stressful life. Try some type of meditation or yoga to balance yourself and become focused. Don't listen to the macho crap that tells you such things are for women only. If you have a war going on inside, you won't look calm and confident on the outside. Be comfortable in your own body.

2.4 Manly body language and voice tone

My name is Bond. James Bond. Don't laugh: Even though they're just fiction, you can learn a lot from James Bond movies. He is a true Man. Let's play a little bit. Imagine that you got the role of James Bond in an upcoming movie. How would you prepare yourself for it? You would probably watch most of the James Bond films already out there and practice in front of a mirror to make your part fit the original character perfectly.

Now I don't ask you to watch all the James Bond films. But I ask you to watch a few, and instead of focusing on the spectacular action scenes, pay attention to the main character. **Observe how he walks, how he talks, the tone of his voice** and **how he interacts with women**. What he says is not that important, but **how he says it** — you can learn a lot from that. **He is** always **confident**, **calm** and **casual**. He knows how to lead, and **he knows that women will always follow him**, without doubt. So I suggest you go to your favorite video store now and rent a few James Bond films if you haven't already done so.

Here is a list describing confident, Manly body language. Use it to calibrate yours:

- 1. Arms. Folding your arms is a closed position. It means that you could be hiding something, you're not comfortable, you don't want to talk, or you don't like what the other person is saying. A confident Man is always comfortable and doesn't have to hide anything. He usually has his arms by his sides or partially in his pockets.
- 2. *Legs*. Closing your legs, crossing them or keeping your feet together might show insecurity. Stand with your feet wider apart. Of course, a 4.5-foot straddle would be ridiculous. **Stand in a comfortable, natural way**.
- 3. Eyes. Most of the time, you should look the other person in the eyes. **Don't stare at her** awkwardly; just catch a glance here and there and **maintain eye contact when you can**. Never stare at the ground when talking to someone either. You are not a kid who got bad grades in school and is afraid to talk to daddy. **Look away to the side**, **but never down**. Confidence should be radiating from your glance.
- 4. *Posture*. Stand erect, and don't bow your back. And, since I suspect no one pushed a post up your ass, don't stand firmly in a stiff way. You can **stand loose without arching your back**, right? Right.
- 5. Smiling. It's always a good idea to smile. It disarms people. It's scientifically proven that smiling will not only give good feelings to the smilee, but to the smiler as well. Yes, that's you. So don't be afraid to do it. You shouldn't always have a big grin on your face, but when talking to women or approaching a girl, make sure to smile a lot. It makes a good impression and even helps her loosen up while talking to you. She won't be as afraid as she would be if you approached with a serious look on your face. So remember what I say, and drop the macho thing, OK?

A confident person is usually in a **relaxed and comfortable** state. He avoids making fast moves. He doesn't play with his fingers or shake his legs nervously. Every move you make and every muscle you move should be the result of a conscious decision and not caused by anxiety. **Walk slowly, but casually**. Don't walk like a robot, please. Be calm and relaxed. You are not in a hurry. You don't have to run. You are not being chased. **Move at your own pace**. And don't be afraid to take up some space as you move. Of course, you don't want to walk with your hands spread 6 feet apart, but show that you can fill the space around you.

A **selfish person** will take all the space he can; **a confident person** takes as much as he needs, but doesn't ask permission for it. **Always be comfortable in your own skin**. If you feel good in a certain position, it will be visible to others as well. And remember, this is just

for practicing. Don't be stupid, and don't think that the more you exaggerate the above, the more Manly you will look.

One more thing I want to talk about is **voice tone**. Some guys might have problems with their voices. If your voice is high like a girl's, it's not very Manly. **A Man has a low**, **calm**, **soothing, seductive voice**. **It should come from the chest/abdomen area and not from your throat**. You can **practice by yourself**: Repeat saying a compliment like, "You have a beautiful smile. I like it." Keep doing it. Start normally; then lower your voice a bit. Slow down a little. Practice till it sounds like James Bond saying: "My name is Bond. James Bond." **If you have a microphone, it's a good idea to record your attempts and listen to them later**. If you have the patience and the time, I suggest you experiment with your voice a few minutes every day for a week or more. Then each day after a short practice, play it back to learn how you still need to improve. On to the next step, Mr. Bond.

2.5 First, put things together on the inside; then everything will be fine on the outside

This is the most important of all. I have met many guys on Internet forums who are trying to learn how to pick up women. They spend their time memorizing techniques, stories and routines to become better at picking up the hotter girls. Ultimately, most of them end up burned out and still without a life. Look, **if you want to have success with women**, **you have to get your own life under control first**. If you are a nerd and don't have hobbies apart from sitting in front of the computer and watching porn, get a life — as crude as it sounds.

A Man is PASSIONATE. He has goals and dreams for his life, and he is DETERMINED to GET WHAT HE WANTS. A woman loves listening to a man who talks passionately about his hobbies, job or whatever. She wants to share his dreams and be a part of his wonderful world. If you don't have a life outside the club where you picked her up, how can she be a part of something that doesn't exist? She can't.

There are hobbies that are particularly good for experiencing what it means to be a Man. Martial arts, dancing or anything competitive fits into this category. Even extreme sports fit, but they can be hazardous to your health. You'll have to decide this for yourself, but here's what I did: I took a salsa dancing course. Since then, I've become a fanatic. When you dance, you learn to let go of everyday stress and feel totally free. It's also one of the best ways to learn indirect communication with females. In salsa (and other dances that involve couples), you are forced to lead. The woman won't know what's coming next; it will always be a surprise for her.

Imagine standing on the dance floor. You make eye contact with a girl, walk up to her confidently and ask for a dance. Then you grab her hand without waiting for a reply, lead her to the dance floor and start dancing with her. In such situations, you will FEEL what it's like to be a Man. The sexy look in her eyes, how she glances at you, expecting you to lead — that's when you realize what being a Man means. You learn to lead and make decisions. You learn to push and pull her gently. You learn about the subtle power play going on between the male and the female on the parquet. Do you FEEL what I'm talking about?

Have you noticed that when you stress too much about something and keep waiting for it anxiously, it just won't happen? Like when you're looking for your keys and turn the whole house upside down to find them. Only after you stop caring so much and say, "Damn it, I give up!" will you find the keys — right under your nose. This is true of everything in life. When you want something so desperately, you won't get it. But when you can let go of your obsessive feelings and learn to care less about it, you will achieve your goal.

There is a method for getting anything you want. First, know what it is, and decide if you really want it. Second, be determined, resolute and ready to do anything to get it. Third, take the steps necessary to achieve your goal. Remember, you can't win the lottery if you don't play — no matter how resolute you are. ② And the fourth step is: After you've done everything you can, let it go. Yes, let it go. Forget about the whole thing, and stop caring so much. That's the hardest part. But only then will you arrive at the fifth step, which is reaching your goal.

It's exactly the same with women. After you've done what you can to accomplish your goal, let go of your obsession. Go out occasionally, socialize, make friends and live a busy life. As soon as you forget what you wanted so much, you'll have girls flocking around you. Time and patience are necessary to achieve success with women. The busier you are, the less time you have to feel sorry for yourself because of not getting women or not getting the ones you want, and the more likely that you'll be successful.

I've mentioned **meditation** before. It **gives you power**. You learn to release unnecessary feelings, to focus on important things intensely, to clear your mind and to keep your self-discipline. All of these will contribute to your becoming a Man. Inner balance brings outer balance that is visible to women. Learn to control yourself. **The only person you can control in this world is YOU**. If you just **understand that**, **you will be way ahead of the crowd** and find yourself leading others. A **strong leader** always has very strong self-control. He doesn't want to control anyone, just **himself** and his reality, **and** the **people follow him**.

With women, focus your mind on the inside. Believe in what you do, and believe that you will make women follow you. We make our own reality by the way we see it. Your perception

of the world is like a boomerang. It's a subjective thing, which you can change, but it also comes back and influences you at the same time. You can see the world as an aggressive, hostile place and behave defensively, or you can build a friendly environment around yourself by acting accordingly. There is nothing you can't reach. Again, this requires a lot of practice. This is what life is about.

3. The first step: meeting girls

3.1 Decide your goals and what you are willing to invest — it all depends on you

Your first step is to decide what kinds of women you want. Even the best seducers have a certain group of girls that they are better with. For example, if you are in your 20s, you might be into picking up party chicks and having a new girl in your bed every night. If you are in your 40s, however, and looking for a wife, disco girls might not be your cup of tea. So know what you're looking for, and form your strategies accordingly. There are young girls and older women. There are highly educated and less educated ones. You will find some of them in clubs and others at exhibitions, the theater or your own social circle.

Generally, **older women are much easier to find and seduce**. They are either singles with a strong sex drive and a massive amount of frustration or married women who are bored with their husbands and their lives as housewives. As women grow older, they start to have fewer and fewer options. As you get older, you will have more and more. So be patient. **Younger girls will always have more choices**. They will be able to select from a wild variety of males, especially if they look good.

Whatever you want, you will have to figure out the best way to get it. Let me give you a few examples: If you want to become a player, you'll probably go clubbing at least two or three nights a week. If you're an artist or a Bohemian type, you'll be found at art exhibitions or modern theaters talking to women with similar interests. If you like cooking, you'll go to a cooking class to meet such women. If you are a New Age guy, you'll visit programs that attract New Age girls. If you're into fundamentalist Christian women, you'll develop a routine of going to the church and eying them, then come up with a way to talk to them.

Brainstorm. If you like girls who are into sports, get a pair of skates and hang at the local skating park. When a hot girl comes by, approach her and talk to her. After some experimentation and a few crash-and-burns, **you'll find** certain **repeating schemes in your conversations**. With a skater girl, you won't talk about modern art; while at the exhibition, the girl you're talking with might not be interested in your rock-climbing adventures.

So to summarize, the basic steps are:

- 1. Think about what you're like, and decide what kind of woman you want and what qualities she should have. Of course, you should take it one step at a time and be realistic. If you're a virgin, you won't become a player next week and bed the hottest *Playboy* models. You'll have to put a lot of time and energy into achieving your goals. Stay rational, and never aim at something you know you can't have in the near future. It's better to have short-term goals and small successes than to have a big disappointment.
- 2. Think about where your type of woman can be found in your city.
- 3. Frequent these events or places. If you don't find what you're looking for, go back to Step 1 or 2.
- 4. Talk to the women that you meet. Get to know what they're into and what they're like; find common interests with them.
- 5. After meeting women of the type you're interested in, you'll form a picture in your mind of their general traits. From this point on, you'll be able to **tailor your conversations** accordingly and to develop a certain routine. Such things might include telling the skater girls your favorite bungee-jumping story or taking them to the café around the corner, which happens to be a romantic little place just below your apartment. Of course, in the end, most of these skater chicks will end up in your apartment ...
- 6. Keep your eyes open, and **be prepared to meet women ANYWHERE**. For example, don't limit yourself to skater girls when you work in proximity to an all-girl boarding school. ©

Now that you've been flooded with information, here's a list of places to meet women (which is not intended to be exhaustive):

- 1. The street
- 2. Shopping centers
- 3. Clubs and bars
- 4. Dance schools
- 5. High school and university campuses
- 6. Language schools and courses that interest you
- 7. The office
- 8. Festivals and programs
- 9. Museums, art exhibitions, galleries
- 10. Concerts and the theater
- 11. While you're on vacation
- 12. Your own social circle or house parties
- 13. The ice-skating rink
- 14. The beach

- 15. Playing sports (tennis, squash, billiards, etc.)
- 16. The park
- 17. While walking your dog
- 18. A café
- 19. The library
- 20. Church
- 21. The gym
- 22. Yoga class

And the list goes on ... possibilities are endless. You can hardly name a place where it's impossible to meet girls. Many couples meet by accident, and such "accidents" can happen anywhere. Of course, no one says you can't help those little accidents happen at your favorite skating park or anywhere else. ©

Before you begin, decide NOW what you are willing to invest in this. You know your skill (whether you're a virgin or you have a few trophies behind you), and you probably have an idea of how much work you will need to improve your odds. Judging from my own experience, I don't suggest devoting all your time to learning to pick up girls — going out five days a week can exhaust you, and it's easy to lose motivation quickly. Never forget that women should be a part of your life, not your reason for living.

On the other hand, **if you sit home all week, you won't get good results either**. The mentality to avoid is: "It feels so safe and warm at home. I won't go out today, maybe next time ..." And this goes on for months or years, while you gradually fall into a depression. Women won't fly to your house; you will have to go out and get them.

So leave the safety of your home and socialize. Work on making friends and meeting new people. It's **the first step to success with women: learning to be a social person**. Even if you've just moved to a city, get out of the house and do something. Everybody has an interest or a hobby to share with other people. I don't care what it takes to get you outside, just do it. Sign up to take dancing lessons or a foreign language course; visit a sports club — it doesn't matter. Go out once, twice or three times a week, visit new places, meet new people, and feel good in your skin.

Finally, don't forget that success won't come in an hour or two; you'll have to work at it. They say that when you're learning something new (like martial arts), after six months, you will know what it's about. After one year, you'll know a few things. In four years, you'll consider yourself to be fairly good. Another 10 years, and you become a master — only to realize how many things you don't know yet ... So keep this in mind when setting up your

goals, and don't be disappointed if success doesn't come tomorrow. With time and determination, you will succeed eventually.

3.2 Overcoming your fear of talking to strangers using mass approaches

Anyone who's not used to approaching strangers will have a fear of it. That's normal. Some people will find it easy; some will find it really hard to overcome this. It's like you're an actor going on stage for the first time in front of a large audience. You will feel your heart pumping, butterflies in your stomach and a lump in your throat ... Even the most seasoned actors will feel anxiety before going on stage, but the difference is that they LEARN TO CONTROL IT. So that's what you will have to do as well. Learn to control your fear and anxiety of approaching women you don't know. Women strangers — man, how scary does that sound? You never did that, right? You will, my friend, you will!

There are two schools of thought on dealing with the fear of approaching strangers. The first advocates therapy, as ridiculous as that may sound. In my opinion, doing a few exercises in your imagination might help somewhat, but won't bring noticeable results. What I subscribe to is shock therapy. That's how I got rid of my fear back when. If you want to quit smoking, you won't do it with a bunch of nicotine patches. You'll have to make the decision to stop for good. From that point on, there is no more smoking. It's the same with girls. You're standing in a club surrounded by girls. Your heart is pounding. What should you do? You will decide to end your misery FOR ONCE and approach a girl RIGHT NOW ... just one of them. Of course, your first approach won't be perfect. But as the saying goes, practice makes perfect. And that's why I recommend mass approaches for your first time.

Look, I really don't care what you say. But **say something**, and say it **to as many girls as possible**. **The best environment for this would be a club**. For the first few times, make sure you **stay sober**. Your only goal should be to overcome your fear of approaching girls. Alcohol will help with your inhibitions, but the next day, you will be the same person with the same fears and inner obstacles. Also, **don't bring any friends** with you. They'll just hold you back and contribute to your getting drunk. Go alone. If you can make sober approaches in a club, you will be able to make approaches ANYWHERE. Keep that in mind: ANYWHERE.

Naturally, this is just the first step. On online seduction forums, there are many so-called seduction "gurus," who advocate this style not just for overcoming your initial fears, but for getting girls EVERY TIME. True, it's good for newbies, but not for the guys wanting more. It takes focus for the most important part: the conversation with the girl. So, **once you get used**

to approaching random women, it's time to switch gears and focus on approaching the ones you want.

But for now, to overcome your initial fears, practice the following exercise:

- 1. **Choose a club and go out alone**. If you want to take someone with you, take one friend who's willing to learn and won't hold you back. If he does, don't take him the next time you go. If you have to go alone, go alone. I did it many times. It's no biggie. Without company, you're forced to talk to people, and you will approach women. Even if you don't approach anyone the first night, you will have enough remorse to do it the next time you go out.
- 2. Take a deep breath, try to loosen up as much as you can, and go up to a random girl. She doesn't have to be the hottest one; your average girl will do for now. If she's with a group, approach her directly. If she's with two or three girls, talk to all of them at the same time. But whomever you approach, DON'T HESITATE. This is the most important part. The more you hesitate, the less likely you are to approach a girl. Don't leave yourself time to think. Count to five and go! Banish negative thoughts from your mind, and forget "What happens if?" questions. Nothing happens. Treat the whole club as your playground. No one will laugh at you; no one will hurt you. It's just some casual talking; no harm done to anyone.

Even if someone says something to you or behind your back, should it really concern you? No. That person doesn't know you. You are a human being, and you have values and positive traits that aren't visible in a few minutes of talking to someone. So don't worry about that, OK? No one is against you, since no one really knows what you're like. In clubs, everyone is trying to show their best side; still, **the most beautiful or most popular people** usually **have the most shallow and empty personalities**. They focus only on the outside and forget that there is a whole different but even more important world on the inside.

3. After you have approached a girl or a group, talk to her/them. Even if you're hesitant, and your legs are shaking and your heart is pounding, force yourself to smile and tell her something. The best method is to memorize a line, an "opener," and use that on every girl that night. This way, additional focus and energy won't be required to think up something to say, and you can concentrate on controlling yourself and your body language. For example, you could use: "Hi! Let me ask you a question. How would you describe your ideal guy? What character traits and inner values should he have?" or "Hi! Do you see that girl over there? I like her, and I want to get to know her. What do you think I should tell her?" You can also make up your own lines.

- 4. Depending on how the conversation goes, either carry on or leave. Remember, your goal is not to bed her tonight, but don't stop if that's about to happen. © After executing the opener into the conversation, you'll understand how easy it is to talk to strangers, and you'll realize you just took the first steps toward overcoming your "biggest" fear. How does it feel?
- 5. Don't stop after talking to a girl or two. Carry on, and talk to as many girls as possible. Eight or 10 are OK; 20 are even better. You don't have to run around trying your opening out on every girl and yelling "one!" "two!" "three!" Just approach as many of them as you want, remembering that your goal is to get used to the feel of the whole thing. The more you do it, the easier it will seem, and you will eventually realize how normal it is to talk to women.
- 6. When you go home, **congratulate yourself**. You took your first steps in the land of pickup. It was a small step for mankind, but a giant leap for you. **Repeat this for a few nights until you feel comfortable in your own skin talking to girls**. **But**, when you get into the game and start to enjoy it, **don't forget that the preceding exercise was only for "de-shying" yourself**; for showing you how easy it is to talk to a girl. It's not the way to proceed from now on. **Your next step is to find the girls that you really like and approach only them**. Up to this point, it would only have given you an excuse not to approach a woman. But, from now on, it will help you focus on the more important aspect, the pickup itself. And now, if you think you're ready for the next step, proceed to *chapter 3.3*.

But, before we move on, here's a story from my life that you can use as motivation: When I was younger, I had a fear of approaching women. I was even too shy to go up to the girls in my high school who were one class below me. So I decided to "de-shy" myself. During the winter, I spent several days every week at the local ice-skating rink approaching girls with the lamest pickup lines you can imagine. "Hi! Do you believe in love at first sight, or should I skate through in front you again?" At that time, I thought they would work. Guess what: They didn't.

But I still forced myself to approach strangers, which gave me a strong base to build my game on.

3.3 Approaching her — what mistakes to avoid

Before you put your new knowledge into use, let's see what NOT to say to girls upon approaching them. There are **two main pickup centers: clubs and everywhere else**. I've put clubs in a separate category, because they're so different from the rest. It's a whole art in itself. So we will talk about clubs for now. If you learn to pick up girls there, other venues will be a piece of cake.

Let's examine pickup lines first. Have you ever tried using them? I'm sure most guys have at least once or twice. Or more. "Do you believe in love at first sight, or should I walk by again?" Sounds cheesy, doesn't it? **Pickup lines are L-A-M-E**. She has heard them many times before. By using them, you become just another loser. Even if she likes you initially, you can easily ruin your chances with a lame line. So forget about pickup lines for good.

Girls in clubs expect to be hit on by guys. That's the main reason they go: to boost their egos or to have some fun with guys. When you approach a girl in a club, she will know what you're up to. From the moment you open your mouth to speak, she will be sure that you're at least a little interested in her. Otherwise, why would you talk to her in the first place? This puts her in a position of power. She is the selector now; she can decide to turn her back on you at any time.

When she sees you approaching, her first thought will probably be: "Here's another guy who wants something from me." Her second thought will be either: "He seems different; let's give him a chance." or "No, not another loser. Where are they coming from? No more losers for tonight. Now get away from me!" To increase your chances, you have to **separate yourself from the crowd**. You have to be different from the rest, to give her a reason she should talk to you.

There are many schemes that most guys follow. She knows all of these. At least three guys will approach her with: "Hi! I'm John. You come here often?" while she's dancing. There's something even better: buying her a drink. Forget about it — NOW. I don't know who came up with such a stupid idea, but he must have been out of his mind. She gets five drinks a night and refuses another five. Hot girls spend ZERO, yes, ZERO money on drinks at clubs. It's because there's always a loser who buys them for her. She doesn't even have to move a finger and has two drinks in front of her.

Why would you invite her for a drink anyway? Do you know her? No. She is a total stranger to you. Do you invite your best buddies for a drink? Yes. Do you invite strangers? No. So treat her like one. Buying a drink is equivalent to approaching her with the following: "I want to fuck you, and I think that by buying you a few dollars' worth of drinks, I'll have a better chance of succeeding! So can we leave now?" Would you fuck a guy like that if you were a girl? Not likely! So forget about it. Even if she asks you to buy her a drink, firmly say, "No." It's one of her tests to decide how Manly you are. If you comply, she will lose interest in you immediately.

Ninety-nine percent of the rest of the guys that a girl in a club meets will be from two categories: the ones who try to hide their intentions and the ones who are too direct and

obvious about their intentions. Even if she hooks up with one of these guys, it's because she liked him initially, and she would have smiled at him even if he had said, "Unga-bunga."

The **first mistake** to avoid is **hiding your intentions**. Trying to approach her with an excuse or by talking about the latest swimsuit fashions is just a waste of time. (Unless you are gay, of course, but then I'm sorry, you're reading the wrong book! ③) She might be entertained by it and, since your presence is nonthreatening to her, you might think that your pickup is going well. Then suddenly, you lose her. It's normal: She's not stupid, and she knows what you wanted from the beginning. The average club girl is approached 10 to 20 times a night by a large variety of guys, and she has much more experience in handling them than you do in handling girls. Don't think you can fool her into believing you're there for an hour just to have fun. A real Man will never hide what he wants and try to trick her — it just lowers your value in her eyes.

The **other mistake** you can make is **being too direct and obvious**. "Wanna fuck?" is not the best way to impress a girl. Even if she's a more experienced woman, she still has some of her little princess fantasies. If you start off by making your intentions to FUCK her clear, she will brush you off in a minute. We are wired differently. Men will jump straight into sex, while women need a long, exciting foreplay to get ready for action.

Take the whole game as a very, very long foreplay. Even if a woman likes you and is ready to go straight into your bed, she still has to handle social restrictions programmed into her head from early childhood. It's not just that she is weaker and you could easily be a stalker, but, if she left with you after your first sentence, her girlfriends would think she was a SLUT. You can still find one girl in every 50 who will leave with you after a direct and obvious opener, but you had better avoid those. You don't want to lay a girl who's with a new guy every night — at least if you want a girl and not a nympho.

3.4 Approaching her — what to say and how

After all these noes, let's talk about the yeses. We know the club girl is approached many times and knows your intentions. This puts her in a position of power. Therefore, **the solution** is to show that you are a Man and be casually direct. You shouldn't be overtly direct, and you shouldn't try to hide your intentions. It's exactly what she's expecting. Tell her that you like her, but also show with your attitude that you are a Man who can handle her and walk away whenever he wants. This disarms her and puts YOU into the power position.

Showing Manliness during an approach has **two elements**: **what** you say and **how** you say it. She will have formed an opinion about you in the first few seconds. Just as you can glance at

a girl and decide whether you like her body or not, she needs only a few seconds of talking with you to get a first impression. And, in clubs, girls will judge you on first impressions.

Up to this point, I've been talking a lot about **the "how" part**. You should go back to *part 2*, "How to be the Man," and reread it. **Having the attitude of a Man is very important**. No matter how good your approach is, if you can't **be consistent with it**, she will eventually sense that you are just faking it and lose interest in you immediately. Reading about something won't give you abilities, but the more you read it, the more familiar you will be with the concept. Then, when an actual situation arises, you'll be able to remember what you've read and use it. It takes practice, but reading it again and again will give you encouragement and motivation.

Now let's see what to say. Here are several casually direct openers you're going to use:

- 1. I like you. You have a beautiful smile.
- 2. I like you, and I would like to get to know you.
- 3. You are beautiful. I like you.
- 4. You know how you look? You look like someone I should meet.

Choose one of the above and use it. **These are very unique opening lines**. **She has probably never heard anything like this from a guy before**. It's honest and nonthreatening. Approaching her with such an opener is like her Prince Charming appearing out of the blue. She has waited for that moment since the beginning — for a real Man to come.

How you deliver those lines is VERY important. You are in a club full of girls. Choose a girl that you REALLY like. Don't make excuses or compromises and say, "That girl is too hot for me, so I'll approach a less good-looking one." I want you to approach one of the hottest girls in the club, and I know you can do it.

When you have selected your target, start by going straight up to her, whether she's sitting at the bar, dancing on a table, talking to her friends or just standing somewhere. Look at her while approaching, whether she notices you and looks back or not. Don't try to hide and approach from the side or from the rear. Take the shortest route possible, and go straight toward her. If there are people in the way, gently push them aside. Don't let them distract you, and don't start apologizing for pushing them away, because it can ruin your Manly stance.

Even if she is with her friends and not alone, **always go straight up to your target girl** and ignore the rest of the group. If they see that she likes you — which she will — they won't block you. Make sure to **SMILE upon approaching her and during the conversation**. A smile is very disarming and makes her feel good. When you are standing in front of her, **look**

into her eyes and talk to her. You can even check out her body in a visible way before delivering your line. Don't forget, a Man will never apologize for his desires.

When using one of the casually direct openers, be conscious of your body language and the tone of your voice. Speak in a low, calm voice. Pay attention to your inner state, and don't deliver the line in a hurry. If she sees that you're hesitating or being nervous, she will know that you're just faking your Manliness and brush you off quickly. Act casually, as if talking to a girl is an everyday thing you do.

Your inner state affects people around you. When you are feeling good and happy, people you talk to tend to adopt your happiness. This is the MOST important part: When you approach the girl, act as if you've found a long-lost friend or you're meeting your true love whom you haven't seen in a very long time. Smile and show her how happy you are to meet her. Even if you're feeling down and low or you have no reason to be happy, try to get yourself into that state. Think of a good memory, and KNOW that something good is going to happen and is awaiting you. Even if your target girl is in a bad mood or acting bitchy with other guys, your magnetic presence will disarm her instantly.

When you first begin talking to her, there's no need to stand at a distance as if you're afraid of her. Gentle human touch can add to the equation. You can **stand next to her and gently touch her shoulders**, **her back or put your arms around her when delivering one of the lines**. **If the music is** too **loud**, **lean** even **closer and whisper in her ear**. When she turns her head toward you, make sure you have a big smile on your face.

If your target is moving in the club or coming toward you, stop her. Start moving toward her, make eye contact and say, "Stop." — Don't yell, because you will startle her. Say it in a gentle but confident way, and smile while saying it. If she doesn't stop, you can put your hand out in front of you or gently grab her arm or shoulder, lean closer and whisper your line in her ear. The above description of Manly delivery holds true in this case as well.

If she's facing another direction when you're approaching her and even after the opener, she is testing to see whether you're consistent within your frame of the Man. If you stand there like an average chump, she'll lose interest and ignore you. So gently grab her shoulders and turn her toward you. Smile while doing it.

After your opener, the girl will usually smile and be happy, express surprise or might not know how to act. She might extend her hand to introduce herself. If that happens, shake her hand, and introduce yourself as well. Some girls will be embarrassed and won't know how to act or what to say. It's like a shock to them, and they don't believe their own eyes. A real Man for her is like the hottest girl in the club coming up to you and offering to spend the

night with you. You would probably be stunned and not know how to react or what to say for a few minutes. So, if that happens, break the ice by asking her a question or introducing yourself first.

You can also give her a compliment right after the opener or later. If you do, don't forget to compliment her personality, taste or her achievements and never her genetics. You can approach a girl with: "I like you. You have really nice earrings; they show wonderful taste." You can also say: "You have beautiful, soft hair" or something to that effect. These are Manly compliments, which show that you are a real Man and that you can also care about her at the same time.

During the conversation, ask questions about her and be totally casual. She will be a pleasant partner and answer your questions. You will notice that some of the hottest girls are empty and don't know what to talk about. For this situation, **I've outlined some topics of conversation in** *chapters 4.3* **and 4.4**. **You can use them with the questions game** (also described in *chapter 4.4*) during your initial talking. Again, the most important thing to remember is to stay consistent with your approach and Manly frame during the pickup and also on your dates. If she senses that you're faking it, she will leave you.

Often a girl's female or male friends will become jealous and try to prevent you from talking to her. In this case, you will have to **isolate her**. When you feel that **the conversation is going well, grab her arm or her hand and** say: "Let's go somewhere quieter!" Then **lead her to another side of the club**. The best option is a table or some other place where the music is not too loud and you can sit and talk without being interrupted. Such a place is also good for kissing her and making out.

If she's worried about losing track of her friends or afraid they might leave her, tell her that you will go with her and find them later. If you can't stop her, grab her hand and lead her to find her friends. It's important not to let her lead you; you should be the one searching while bringing her around. If you don't know what her friends look like, tell her to alert you if she sees them.

Hot girls are very flaky, and since they are usually spoiled and given everything because of their looks, they find it hard to take on responsibilities. The hotter they are, the truer this is. She might have to leave you to go to the restroom or catch her friends. If this happens, no matter if she promises to come back or you were in a wonderful conversation, she will probably stay with her friends. In this case, find her, smile and continue talking where you left off.

After the conversation, when the time is right, kiss her or get her number. If the situation allows it, go as far as she lets you. You can read more about this in the next chapter. Never hesitate if you feel that the moment has come to act. Too much hesitation is inconsistent with your initial Manly frame, and if she senses it, she will leave you quickly.

Some clubs consist of one big dance floor with **really loud** music and not too many places to talk. I usually avoid these, but there might be times when there is no other place to go. You could learn a few dance moves and try them on girls, but unless you are good-looking, it won't be effective.

Also, many of the girls on the dance floor take drugs, and trying to pick up such girls is usually pointless. They are easy and may give you their number, but they will behave totally differently the next day. They are just there to have fun, and while they're high, they don't seriously consider anything that happens. Also note: Laying drugged/drunken women is against the law in many countries, including the United States.

So, to summarize, if you're in a loud club, **learn to raise your voice**, **speak louder** and approach the same way as you normally would. You can also try to isolate girls from their group or surroundings quickly and find a quieter place in the club to talk. After your opener, gently grab her hand and say: "Let's go somewhere quieter."

Note: The concept and openers above are based on the method developed by my friend, Ranko Magami. You can visit his website at <u>www.attractanddate.com</u>.

3.5 Getting her phone number

I only wrote a separate section on this, because many guys tend to overrate this phase. Getting her number is easy once she is ATTRACTED to you. Just say: "I want to meet you later. Give me your phone number." Have your mobile or a piece of paper and a pen at hand and have her write it for you. After getting her number, kiss her goodbye and leave.

If she doesn't want to give you her number, but offers to take yours and call you, don't accept it. **Never give her your number without getting hers**. It's a sign that she's not interested, and accepting it would show that she disrespects you. Tell her: "Look, I won't give my number to you without getting yours, since I know you won't call. I want to meet you, but I'm not into playing silly games. Either give me your number now, or I will leave, and we're never going to see each other again." If she still won't give you her number, it means you've probably done something wrong. (Hint: You weren't Man enough for her.) At this point, there's not much left for you to do.

3.6 Other venues

Apart from clubs, there are many other places to meet girls. These include shopping malls, university campuses, the street and other venues I have already mentioned. The difference is that at most of these places, women don't expect to be approached, and they are in a different mood. Usually, just by going up to them, you will create a large amount of attraction. But always be careful not to come off as threatening. Yelling "Stop!" at a girl on the street with a serious expression on your face might not be the best way to approach her. I wouldn't recommend touching her either: Imagine being a woman, and some stranger on the street suddenly puts his hands on your shoulders.

Just choose the girl you want to approach: on the street, in a shopping mall or anywhere else. Try to make eye contact with her. Whether she looks back at you or not, smile, then go straight up to her. Don't approach her from behind or from the side. Your goal is not to scare her to death, but to talk to her. When you're in front of her, raise your hand gently and say, "Stop," while still smiling and looking in her eyes. If she is located elsewhere, like sitting on a bench, sit next to her. Your state should be the same as when approaching a girl in a club. Be happy about meeting her and show it. You can use one of the "I like you" lines: "Hi! I like you. You have a beautiful smile."

After she recovers from her surprise and you talk a bit, **you can offer to take her to a nearby café** if she's not in a hurry. Shopping malls are ideal for this, because there are usually several restaurants and cafés inside. If she has to leave, just say: "I see you're in a hurry, but I want to meet you later and get to know you better. Let's exchange numbers, and we can meet in a café to talk later." Then take her number.

If both of you have some spare time, it's not a bad idea to **stay together and switch venues**. For example, if you meet at the shopping mall, sit and talk in a café for an hour or two; then you can take her for a walk at the nearby park and kiss her. **The more time you spend with her and the more places you visit together**, **the closer she will feel to you**, as if she's known you for some time. Try it. And, by the way, **you can do the same thing when picking her up in a club:** Just extract her from the club; then visit a restaurant or another place as if you were already a couple.

Another way to meet girls is in your own social circle, that is, your friends and the people they introduce you to. Visiting a house party organized by your buddies, or going out together is the easiest way to pick up a girl in your circle of friends. Just make sure when you are new in a group that you don't fight for attention or try to be the center by being loud. Lay back and watch the dynamics going on in the conversation. There is no need to use any specific opener; just approach the girl you want when the time is right, and talk to her.

A word of warning: If it's more of a closed circle, think twice before trying to pick up a girl. **Don't shit where you eat**; see if it's worth it. Consider that you will probably lose your chances with other girls in the same group. And, **if she's the only girl that eight guys are trying to pick up**, you will have to choose a different technique. Just **lay back and ignore her**. Your ignoring her will start to bother her after some time, and she'll probably initiate a conversation with you. Note that this only works if she has already acknowledged your presence.

3.7 When a girl wants to be approached

Whether you notice it or not, during your everyday life, girls send signals about their interest or disinterest in you. Just as you see a hot female and feast your eyes on her body, girls measure you in the same way. Of course, most of these girls might not fully meet your standards, but you'll be sure to find that some of them are fairly hot. I'll mention a few of the signs of interest below and will discuss them in depth in *chapter 4.5*.

When a girl walks in front of you and looks into your eyes or even smiles, that's a sign of interest. When you're on a bus and you notice that a certain girl maintains her proximity even if you sit or stand somewhere else, that's another sign. Maybe while you're reading a book, you notice with your peripheral sight that she's looking at you occasionally. Or when you sit next to her on a bus, she fixes her hair or tries to do something to get your attention. Some of these signs may be subconscious, but most of them are done consciously.

Wherever you are on the street — traveling on the subway or sitting in a café — if you see a girl that you like showing signs of interest in you, you SHOULD approach her. If you're pressed for time or are in a situation where one of you is in a hurry, there is a nice line I like to use. She is rarely approached with such, and it displays a great deal of Manliness. Upon approaching, tell her: "Hi. You look like somebody I should get to know, but I'm in a hurry right now. Still, I don't want to pass up such a wonderful opportunity to meet someone like you. I'd like to see you again at a place where we can talk and get to know each other." While delivering it, make sure that you come off as nonthreatening. Keep a big smile on your face at all times. You are not a stalker; your goal is to get to know her better. If she agrees (and she no doubt will if she has already shown signs of interest in you), ask her to exchange numbers with you. Then smile, and carry on with whatever you were doing.

This can be a lot more spectacular in a club where girls go to get guys. Even an average-looking guy gets at least four or five invitations for an approach during a night in a crowded club (although most of them don't notice it). Usually, you can approach her with one of the "I like you" openers. If you're leaving or don't have time to talk, the line from the preceding

paragraph can be pulled off very nicely. I've been in many situations when I was about to leave a club in the morning and noticed a girl trying to catch my eye. When this happens, I go up to her and ask for her number. Then she smiles, and that's it. I end up dating her.

If you have no experience at reading female signs, learning to recognize them will be harder at first. Pay attention to how people behave in your everyday life, and watch the signs that women give you and other guys using body language. Just by observing certain social situations at your office or in a crowded club, you can learn a lot!

Generally, if a woman walks near you and looks into your eyes while smiling, or looks down childishly, she's likely to be interested in you. Some women might not be comfortable looking into your eyes or showing their interest overtly; that's why **it's important to "feel" the situation**. These feelings will come with experience. If she looks away or looks up, she's probably either neutral or disinterested. But even then, you can approach her with what you have learned in *chapter 3.4*.

There are also ways to measure how interested she is in you. I have met girls who eyed a guy for a whole night till he got the courage to approach them. Then again, some girls will only give you a slight glance from which you have to decide. Either way, even if you are not sure about her initial interest, approach her.

Listen, my friend, if you base your approaches JUST on signs of interest that women show you, you'll see that your success skyrockets quickly. BUT it's also easy to fall into the TRAP of laziness or shyness and use this as an excuse for not making cold approaches. Please, don't do that. These invitations usually guarantee success, and being able to use this is a nice tool to have in your arsenal. The hottest women will very rarely give you such signs, and you will have to cold-approach them. So be the Man, use what you've learned, and be ready to approach a woman at any time without excuses, not just when you're invited.

3.8 Meeting women on the Net

To be honest, I have never met any model-quality girls on the Internet. Whether you will or not depends on your geographical location. In some of the bigger cities, girls extensively use the Internet. In my area, I have only encountered two types of sites: those with little schoolgirls around 14 years old and those with women over 28. What I've been missing are hot girls between 20 and 25. But, if you go out regularly and still have time on your hands for surfing the Internet, you should try it out on your own. It's good for practicing your Manly attitude.

Here are a few guidelines you can follow if you decide to try Internet dating:

Online personals:

- 1. **I don't recommend** using **commercial services**. Try a free one and, if it works for you, consider paying for it. Otherwise, it would just be a waste of money.
- 2. If a girl is hot enough and has her photo up, she'll get 50 e-mails a day from the creation of her account. Even if she checks it often, she will become bored by the losers after a few days or weeks. So be fast when a new girl shows up online, and write to her instantly.
- 3. Some guys set up fake accounts. They create profiles of hot girls for fun to see how many and what kinds of e-mails other guys are sending. This is lame and messes up the whole Internet dating scene. So **take care when you see a girl who looks too hot to be true**; it could be a picture of a porn star with a "funny" guy behind the whole thing.
- 4. **Another story:** There's an urban legend circulating in my city: A guy logged on to an Internet dating site as a hot woman and started e-mailing a lot of guys at the same time. "She" agreed to make a date with several of them. They set up a time, and each guy had to have a red rose in his hand so the "girl" would recognize him. That day, according to newspapers, there was a big fight in the crowd at one of the biggest shopping malls, when 15 guys arrived in front of the same cinema holding red roses in their hands.
- 5. Make sure you have a lot of free time. You'll have to check the new profiles and your messages every day, and it can take weeks to get a girl to meet you using the Net.
- 6. Your profile is very important. Although girls get enough messages so they don't have to search for guys' profiles, when you send a message, they will take a look at yours. You should have something in your profile to separate yourself from the crowd. First, be sure to have a picture of yourself. Many women who get 50 new messages a day won't look at your profile if they see you have no pics uploaded. I don't suggest the use of half-naked pictures and such. Young girls around 14 will love it, but perhaps that's not what you want?! The best would be something creative or extraordinary: you with your dog, you skiing or you hugging or riding a dolphin during your last vacation.

Here is an example of some text for your profile:

"What is a real man like?

Confident? Knows how to lead? You feel safe with him? He has a sense of humor? He is kind and caring? A true gentleman?

E-mail me and we'll see."

- 7. Many personal services offer an option to notify you of newcomers. Take a look at the new photos daily, and e-mail these girls as quickly as possible. I don't advise e-mailing those who don't have their profile pics up. You don't know whom you're dealing with, and there are many girls with pics you can choose from.
- 8. The number of responses you get depends on the number of girls you write to and the quality of your profile/messages. Have a well-written template message ready that you can modify slightly and send to all the girls. Don't expect every girl to respond. Some of them will have full mailboxes, some of them won't have time to read your message, some of them won't be interested, and some of them will be fake accounts. A good message can increase your success though. Following is an example:

"Hi, Amy! If your picture is real, then I like you. You look like someone I should get to know.

I'm not the type of guy who is into playing games. I know what I want, and I'm not afraid to take it. If you think you can handle a challenge and you're ready for an adventure, e-mail me to begin. Richard"

- 9. Try to **meet her in person as soon as possible**, and don't waste too much time on any one girl. **Have multiple girls on the go**. Most of them won't take it seriously anyway.
- 10. There are online communities that you can use for meeting women. One of them is *friendster*, for example. Some of these services aren't specifically designed for online dating, but I have a friend who has a unique style and has a lot of success with *friendster* chicks.

Chat rooms:

- 1. Chat rooms are another way to meet girls. It's a little bit more personal, and it might be easier to seduce somebody this way, but it'll also take a lot of time. Find some general-talk chat rooms, which are more popular, and search for girls.
- 2. Go private as soon as you can, and always do simultaneous chats with multiple girls.

- 3. Try to **get her photo as soon as possible**. Unlike personal ads, if she doesn't have a photo up, it doesn't necessarily mean she's ugly. Unfortunately, you can only find out how she really looks on a date. Never listen to what she says about herself; she can easily be lying. The only way to judge her looks might be from her self-esteem. If she is confident and seems to have high self-esteem, she might not be that bad-looking. You can also ask how social she is, whether she goes out or not, has a lots of friends, etc. These are just guidelines.
- 4. During the chat, it's just as important to separate yourself from the other guys as anywhere else. **Don't show excessive interest in her**. Don't hit on her. **Lay back, and be the Man**. If things are going well, ask for her number. If she won't give it to you, try getting her e-mail address first.
- 5. I have a friend who was a total newbie with girls and started chatting. He was too lazy to go out. Still, he put a lot of time and effort into online chatting. Within a year, he was able to have sex with two girls he had met on the Net plus a bunch of kisses and dates with others. That's not a very high success rate. And to meet a girl will require e-mailing back and forth for weeks, having to beg for her picture and so on. Even if you have multiple girls on the go, it's just too much of a hassle. You can achieve the same results by going to a club on an average Saturday night without having to spend lonely nights in front of your computer. It's up to you.

4. Second step: from the first date to having sex

4.1 On the phone

Always call a girl on her mobile if she has one, so you can call her whenever you want. But **don't be too eager**, and don't pick up the phone five minutes after you get her number. There's also **no need to play games** and wait two or three days before calling — unless you're too busy, of course.

When she answers the phone, just say: "Hi, it's Rick. I was just thinking about you and thought I'd give a call to hear your cute smile." You don't need to give her a compliment, but it makes her feel good, so why not? **Don't start explaining anything like**: "Hi, it's Rick. Remember, we met yesterday at the Club Habana ... blah blah." A real Man doesn't do that. If she doesn't remember you by name and asks who you are, maintain an awkward silence for a few seconds; then tell her.

On the phone, you should **be short and to the point**. No need to seduce her or talk for hours. Ask what's up and how she is. Then tell her that you want to meet. Be confident, and keep your strong frame: "I want to meet you. Let's get together tomorrow at 3 p.m. in the park." If she's busy, ask her to list when she's free, and choose a date that's good for both of you. Never modify your program for a girl, and even if you make a mistake and do so, never tell her about it

After hanging up, **don't call her till the date**. It's usually best to leave just a day or two between the phone call and the meeting. If you couldn't set up a time to get together, call her a few days later. If you want, you can send her short text messages between phone calls.

If she doesn't answer the phone, ring back a few minutes later. Never call more than two times in a row. Give her some time, and don't force anything. If you get her answering machine or voice-messaging service, just say: "Hey, it's me. I was thinking about you, so I called. I can still see your cute smile. I want to meet you tomorrow, and I have a nice idea. Bye!" Don't tell her what the nice idea is. Keep her guessing and on her toes. Girls love the feeling of anticipation. She will either call back, or you can call her the next day. Don't force a meeting if she's not free. Agree on a different time.

It sometimes happens that a girl doesn't make your date or cancels it a few hours, or even minutes, before. There's no universal solution for this. It probably means that you went wrong somewhere and weren't Man enough for her. She may have problems in her life, or she could just be having a bad day. If the attraction isn't big enough, it can happen. Women will usually

come up with some bullshit on why they can't meet you. Some of this is true, but most of it is stupid excuses. You can either move on or be persistent till she meets you. Don't be her little puppy, and don't cling to her. Live your life, have more girls on the go, and have OPTIONS, remember? No need to force anything, but you can be persistent if you want. She will give in sooner or later, or you will decide to move on.

4.2 Where to go on the first few dates

After doing your job on the phone, it's time for **the first date** with the girl. Remember, **it's always the man who arranges everything**, whether you sit in a café or go to the mountains. You don't have to tell her what you're going to do; **women love surprises**. A little warning though: If you know she will probably come in her high heels, either don't take her rock climbing, or tell her to bring climbing shoes beforehand. She will love you for that later. It's a sign that you're not a total jerk and that you care for her.

Always have a plan, especially when going out with a girl for the first time. The most important things are knowing where to take her, knowing what to talk about and knowing how and when to advance physically. It's all about L-E-A-D-I-N-G. In this chapter, I'll mostly be discussing where to take her; the rest will come later.

I personally don't prefer going to the movies or the theater on the first date. Your goal for now is to talk and get to know each other better. Nor do I recommend restaurants. And never, ever take her to a club on a first date. Clubs are for singles or couples who are already dating; guys hitting on your girl in a distracting environment could ruin your relationship before it even begins.

Apart from the above, you have many options. If it's cold outside, just sit in a comfortable café or tearoom. It should be a friendly environment that isn't too loud and where you can sit next to her. If you live in a warm climate or if it's summer, the best thing to do is to take her somewhere outdoors and have an enjoyable activity together.

I need to stress **the importance of knowing your city**. So KNOW YOUR CITY. Know the monuments, romantic places, parks, amusement parks and the types of activities you can do with a girl. There is probably some city-guide paper that you can get your hands on to find out where the most romantic places are. Or ask one of your friend girls to show you around. Your date will love it when you take her to a place where she's never been or didn't even know about. Here are a few ideas to consider:

Outdoor dates:

- 1. **Parks** where you can have a walk and chill together. Sit on benches where couples are kissing nearby, look at the flowers, walk under the trees, play games or have a picnic. Possibilities are endless.
- 2. **Castles**, **ancient ruins** or monuments. Anything you can climb that is somewhat of an adventure. If there is a long-abandoned ruin or castle in your city, take her there. It's going to be a lot of fun for her. Make sure that if she is frightened, you are nearby to comfort and hug her
- 3. **Lookout towers** or **places with a good view**. Put your arms around her while looking down on the city. If it's located at some distance from the parking lot, take your time getting there, and enjoy a leisurely, romantic walk together.
- 4. Go to an amusement park, a zoo or a dolphinarium/aquarium.
- 5. Caves. If you have caves in the city or nearby, take her there on an arranged tour.
- 6. **Rock** or **wall climbing**. It's a good, exciting date if you know how to do it, even if you're just a little more experienced than she is.
- 7. Go skating or visit the ice-skating rink during winter.
- 8. **Swimming pool**. Go to the swimming pool or the local beach together. Swim and sunbathe; then have a cold drink at a nearby café.
- 9. Go on an **outing** to a nearby forest, state or national park, or some other interesting place. Visit a **fountain**, a **lookout tower** or a **local monument**.
- 10. Go-cart racing or bobsledding.
- 11. An excursion on a boat or Jet Skiing on the local river/lake.

Indoor dates:

- 1. **Bowling**. Give her a soaking at the bowling alley. You can keep teasing her if it's her first time bowling. ©
- 2. **Snooker** or **billiards**. Only if you know how to play though.
- 3. **Shopping**. Take her to the nearest shopping mall. Sit in a café; then walk around together. Go to a few stores, and shop for clothes for yourself. Ask her how the clothes look on you. Go to the bookstore, and have fun while looking at the sex or love advice books with her.
- 4. Play squash or tennis; then have a drink together.
- 5. Museums and art galleries.
- 6. Exhibitions or statue parks (sculpture gardens).

Here's an example of a unique place in my own city. I'm sure you can find something cool in yours as well — just open your eyes and look around. We have a short tunnel here that leads through a small hill to a bridge that crosses the river. The bridge is illuminated at night, and there is a calm, hidden place at the top of the tunnel, from which the view of the bridge

and the whole city is beautiful, especially at night. I might take her to a nearby café, then have a walk together and arrive at the top of the tunnel as a surprise. It's an ideal place for a first kiss and to complete a wonderful date.

Use your imagination, and come up with new ideas to suit your needs. Do whatever you can in YOUR city. Although not all the places mentioned in the lists above are good for a first date, they contain many good suggestions that can keep you and your girl entertained for a while. The **best dates are cheap, low-cost dates**. I never take a girl somewhere expensive for the first date. You can do that later as a reward or gift to enhance your relationship. And remember what I've said about money: Be careful with gold diggers!

As I mentioned previously, knowing where to take her is necessary, but not enough on its own. You should also know where you are going conversationally and physically. In the next two chapters, I'll give you some examples of topics to talk about on your dates. When I talk about the physical aspects of a date, I mean that whenever you're on a first date, you should have a goal in mind. That goal is to kiss her by the end of the date. You're soon going to learn some techniques and ideas for achieving this as well. Carry on!

4.3 What to talk about

Talking to women is a little bit different from talking to your buddies. To get good at it, you'll have to work on your skills by practicing, just as you did when you learned to ride your bike.

With girls, there are times when you just click, and communication is flawless between the two of you. You don't have to think about what to say next, and you're caught up in a nice conversation. On the other hand, there are times when you encounter awful silences and don't know what to say. When this happens, it's not bad to have some prepared topics in your arsenal to spice up the conversation a little.

What's the **purpose of communication** between the two of you after all? The main purpose is to get to know each other better. To get a rough impression of each other's personality and view of the world. To see if you click and get on well. Apart from this, women will always ask themselves about their feelings or the way they feel about you after talking to you. Thus, for you, communication will also be a tool to evoke certain emotions in her.

Let's talk about these. **Before anything can happen, she has to like you**. If you are a Man, she will see it in the first few seconds and be attracted to you. When that happens, she will be interested in talking to you or going on a date. **After the initial attraction, there are certain**

phases that each male-female interaction goes through. You can speed up the process, but you can't skip any phases. Here is a way to categorize it, which I call the phases of initial conversation (you could categorize it in many other ways, of course):

- 1. The first step is to **loosen up** a little in each other's company. You can talk about totally superficial topics; it doesn't really matter. People need time to let themselves relax a little bit, to get accustomed to the environment and the other person, especially on a date.
- 2. When you're loosened up, the next step is to achieve **rapport** with each other. Finding commonalities, common interests and a point where the two of you can connect is necessary.
- 3. When you have found common interests, you can work on establishing **comfort and trust**. A woman needs to know that she can trust you before giving her body to you. She needs to know that you won't harm her physically or leave her after having sex. For ages, women who lost their virginity before marriage were labeled sluts and driven to the edges of society. Today, it's a lot better, but girls still have to consider how their friends will react. Society still puts a lot of pressure on them. That's why this phase is so important.
- 4. And the fourth step is her **arousal**. The first three phases will somewhat guarantee that during the process of arousal, social conditioning won't kick in. Before you kiss her or have sex with her, you need to go through these steps in order.

Each point given above is in a **cause-and-effect relationship** with the next one. In order to have sex with her, you need to arouse her. You can easily arouse her, but to prevent social conditioning from kicking in, she will need to trust you. But trust comes only after rapport, and rapport comes after loosening up. See? It's like building a house. If you skip the foundation or just one step, your house will soon collapse. Going through all four phases is necessary.

Before I give you some examples regarding the list above, let me tell you what to avoid talking about. I generally **don't talk about religion, politics or work/school** when getting to know a woman for the first time. Religion and politics are taboo, and some people have such strong views that it might fuck up an otherwise good date. Save that for the relationship; you'll have time to debate your views later. Even if you're sure that your views match, it's not a good idea to talk about such serious topics on the first date. The topics of work and school are simply boring. Your first date together shouldn't seem like a job interview. **A typical example**:

- 1. Where do you work?
- 2. Oh, and what was your previous job?
- 3. Which school do/did you go to?
- 4. Where do you live?
- 5. Do you have any sisters?

- 6. How old is your little brother?
- 7. You have a dog?

Sound familiar? AVOID using these and similar questions as the center of your conversation with the girl. When she comes home from work and goes on a date, she might want to let her hair down a little. You don't want to bore each other with such topics. Many guys have already asked her these questions anyway, and you should try to be different from the rest.

Now that you know what you shouldn't talk about, let's examine each step of the phases of initial conversation in more detail:

- 1. To loosen up, there's no need to ask serious questions. A little chitchat will do the job. Examples: (Note: These are only examples. It isn't necessary to follow this list from point to point in your conversations; they're just to give you ideas if you don't know what to talk about.)
- 1. **News and gossip** involving celebrities, drama, trends, fashion. Talking about the latest breakup of Britney Spears, the fashion style of stars, etc. Ask her what she thinks about the world of celebrities, whether she is attracted or repulsed by it.
- 2. Her favorite **films** and why she likes them. Has she seen your favorite film or not? Is she into the kinds of films you like or not?
- 3. Her **favorite actor**, **actress/pop star/film star**. Has she ever fantasized about becoming a celebrity? Does that shining, glamorous world attract her? Would she date a famous person, or would she rather be with a better, but lesser-known guy.
- 4. **Music**. What music does she like? Has her musical taste changed since her teenage years? Does she prefer classical music or rock/electronic genres? Does she go to **concerts**? How far would she go to see her favorite band? Does she like **clubs** and, if so, what type?
- 5. **Her hobbies**: Does she like **reading** or going to the **theater** or **exhibitions**. Does she prefer playing sports or another activity? Does she **dance**? If so, what types of dancing does she do? Has she participated in competitive **sports**? What sports does she like?
- 6. **Animals**: What is her favorite animal? Does she prefer dogs or cats? What does she think of vegetarianism and animal rights? Has she ever tried horseback riding or seen a real dolphin?
- 7. Ask her where she would go if she could visit any place in the world.
- 8. What is the strangest thing that she has ever done or the strangest thing that has happened to her?

You can also tell some entertaining stories from your life. The direction of the conversation will depend on the type of woman you are dealing with. Popping up different topics will show you her general interests and give you a picture of the kind of person she is.

- 2. When you're into talking, you can go into deeper topics and ask her about herself and her personality:
- 1. **Relatives and friends**. Is she an only child, or does she have sisters or brothers? If she could choose, would she choose differently? **Did she have a lot of friends** in high school? How many friends does she have these days? **Is friendship important to her**, and is she good at keeping in touch with friends and relatives?
- 2. Goals and aspirations. What did she want to be when she was a little girl? Has she achieved what she wanted, does she still want to, or has she changed her goals? What are her current short-term goals; what does she think she'll be doing in five to 20 years, and what does she want to do? Ask if she is satisfied with her job/school or if she wants more.
- 3. Passion and satisfaction. Does she have an activity or hobby that she pursues with great passion and enjoyment? Is there a special place where she relaxes or where she enjoys being? What does she do to loosen up and free herself from stress and worries? What's the most challenging and satisfying thing in her job/area in which she studies?
- 4. **Traveling** and **vacations**. Talk about places and countries where you and she have been; **share your memories of what you both enjoyed the most**. If you've been to the same place, compare notes. Ask her about **the best vacation of her life** and why she liked it so much. What's the first memory that pops into her mind from that vacation? Is there **a country, city or culture that fascinates her? Has she** ever **considered moving** to another city, country or part of the world? If she had to live in another part of the world, where would it be and why?
- 5. Male-female relationships. Who lies and cheats more: women or men? Does she think men understand what women really want? Are males and females switching roles in today's society? Tell her your view on this topic, and tell her what being a Man means to you.
- 6. **Ask her about herself**: How does she know when a man is interested in her? What's the thing that men usually find the most attractive about her? **Is she satisfied with herself**, both her personality and looks, or is there something she would change?
- 3. Going even deeper and sharing memories that evoke feelings of comfort and safety can establish a certain amount of trust:
- 1. **Her youth** and **childhood**. What was her favorite toy? Did she play with dolls, or was she the girl who played with the boys? Was she a good or a bad kid? Did she have good grades? When did she have her first drink, and was there anything outrageous that she did at school?
- 2. Ask her about **her best memory from when she was a little girl**, maybe a place where she really liked to be, something that gave her comfort and shelter, where she felt safe far from the noise of the world. **Let her describe** what it was like and **how she felt** in those moments. Ask her if there is something now that makes her feel the same way.

- 3. **Talk about her friends**. How would her friends describe her behind her back? Has she ever been very disappointed because of a friend betraying her? Does she believe in true friendship, and are there many people whom she would consider to be "real" friends?
- 4. **If she could go back in time and change something in her life**, what would she do differently? If she could change only one thing, what it would be?
- 5. **Talk about love** and whether she has ever been in love; if so, how many times? What's the most surprising thing that she did or would do for love? Does she believe in love at first sight, and does she think that true love exists? Is she lonely sometimes? Wouldn't she love to have somebody to hug at these times?

At this point, she should be ready for the fourth step — arousal — which I'll discuss in the next chapter.

4.4 Sex and critical topics

After she is loosened up in your company and you have a comfortable amount of rapport, trust and comfort with her, you can shift the conversation toward a more sexual orientation so she will be ready for the first kiss. **The topic of sex is something you can never be direct about**. You can't ask a girl: "Do you want to have sex with me?" even if you think she does. What **you can** do is to **arouse her with words** by talking about sexual experiences and themes to evoke such feelings in her; **then slowly advance physically** till she is ready and wanting sex herself.

There is a game that I really like. It's sort of an icebreaker for the first date. It gives a frame for both of you to ask questions that you wouldn't normally ask on a first date and brings up the topic of sex. It's called the "questions game." Use it when you're deep into the conversation, and both of you are enjoying each other's company. Don't take it seriously; it only works if you do it in a funny and entertaining way. This is not a game to play when things are awkward. Only bring it up if both of you are LOOSENED UP and FEELING GOOD.

Tell her you know a funny and entertaining game you want to show her. Tell her it has these rules: You ask questions of each other, one at a time, taking turns. You have to ask questions that let the cat out of the bag. "How old are you?" is not allowed. "How many boyfriends have you had?" is OK. The same question can't be asked twice. And the last rule: She goes first. Of course, she won't be able to ask anything and will pass the ball to your court. **Here are a few questions you can ask**. Notice how **they lead her in a sexual direction:**

1. Questions about previous relationships — good for a start:

- 1. How many boyfriends have you had?
- 2. When did you have your first boyfriend?
- 3. When did you break up with your last boyfriend?
- 4. What did you like the most, and what did you hate the most in him?
- 5. What was missing in your relationship with your last boyfriend?
- 6. What was missing in your relationships with your boyfriends up to now?
- 7. Do you prefer passion, adventure and excitement, or are you more of a romantic person?
- 8. Have you ever been in love?
- 9. Which one of your boyfriends did you love the most?
- 10. What was the most wonderful place where you spent time with him?
- 11. With your future boyfriend, what would be the most wonderful place to spend time?
- 12. What's the craziest thing you've done in a relationship or for love?

2. Questions about kissing — will make her think about the topic:

- 13. When did you last kiss a guy?
- 14. When did you have your very first kiss?
- 15. When did you have the first kiss that you really enjoyed? Describe what it was like.
- 16. Have you ever kissed a guy on a first date? How did it happen?
- 17. Describe your perfect kiss what it's like!
- 18. What was the most exciting thing you did when playing "truth or dare"?
- 19. If you had to choose between sex and friendship in a relationship with a guy, which one would you choose?

3. Questions about sex — ideal for arousing her and making her think about the topic; ask them only if she seems comfortable with it:

- 20. Have you ever had a one-night stand?
- 21. Have you ever had sex on the first date?
- 22. How often do you have sex when you are in a relationship?
- 23. Where's the most bizarre place you ever had sex?
- 24. Have you ever had sex in public?
- 25. What's your favorite position?
- 26. When did you have sex for the first time?
- 27. Have you ever had a threesome with another girl or guy?
- 28. Would you try it?
- 29. What's the most extreme thing you've done while having sex?
- 30. What was missing in your sex life up to now?

- 31. Do you masturbate? How often?
- 32. Describe what perfect sex is like for you.

I can't stress enough to **gauge her reactions and calibrate**. If she's not comfortable with the more sexual topics, **don't force it**. It will vary from girl to girl. If she's a virgin, she might blush when you ask some of the preceding questions. If she seems uncomfortable, change the topic. Ask something that's less piquant, or forget the whole game.

The game is also wonderful for gauging what kind of a girl she is. After playing it, you will be able to decide whether she is a more romantic or down-to-earth person, whether she takes sex as an everyday thing or she is more of a conservative type, etc. With this information, you can tailor your style to her personality. If she is a sexual girl, she will be more open to advancing physically and maybe having sex on the first date. If she is the romantic type, you can take your time and let her become more comfortable in your company by waiting for a few more dates.

If things are going well during the game, **pay attention to the signals** she is sending via her body language. She might be ready to be kissed after some of the more sexual questions or even just the topic of kissing. **Watch for the peak point** in your conversation, when her pupils dilate and her breathing quickens. That's the point to go in for the kiss. See the following chapters for more info on these signs and how to kiss her.

4.5 How to read women: signs that she is ready to go physical

Normally, there is a special **dynamic** operating in male-female relationships. While **females** tend to adopt a **passive**, **receptive demeanor**, **males** are **more active and initiative**. A typical example at a club is: Girls expect to be approached, while guys are expected to approach girls. A girl can do two things to improve her success: She can look her best, dress in high heels, push-up bras, etc., and she can also give inviting signs for a guy to approach her. A guy will be more likely to approach a girl who looks good in his eyes, but he will also go for a less hot one if she shows signs of interest and he sees the green light.

Thus, in a typical male-female interaction, the **female will signal with her body language** and behavior that she is ready to proceed, while the male will respond to her signs, calibrate and advance accordingly. He will have to go through the steps and initiate, as she expects him to. Once again, this is about leading. No matter how good a conversationalist you are and no matter how attracted to you she is, you will always have to be the one initiating. Some aggressive and horny women will do it for you, but that's the exception and not the rule.

There are **two kinds of female signals: conscious and subconscious ones**. A girl will give conscious signals when she wants you to make your move. Subconscious signals are subtler and will be an automatic response to her feeling good in your company. It is very important to learn these signs. I'm sure you've laughed just as many times as I have at the typical scene in Hollywood movies: The girl is attracted to a guy; the guy is attracted to the girl, but the guy doesn't recognize the signs of interest she's sending him, which leads to a great deal of farce. Just by learning to recognize the signs women are sending, you will improve your success exponentially. In a club or in typical everyday situations, there will always be a few **girls around you showing signs of interest and inviting you to approach them** using body language. If you recognize these girls and make your move, you will be likely to succeed.

You will see that sometimes certain signs can be misleading, and it's necessary to **develop your intuition** for such situations. For example, a waitress has to smile at everyone to get tips, and by accident, she could mislead you into thinking that she's attracted to you. To avoid this, you will need to fine-tune your intuition with experience and learn to "feel" whether she is really attracted to you or not. A professional table tennis player doesn't see the ball. He feels it. His hands move automatically while he is in a trance. A lot of practice will make you better at "feeling" the signs that women are giving, just as the table tennis player does with the ball.

So let's look at the most general conscious and subconscious signs that show she is attracted to you:

- 1. She's relaxed while sitting or standing and talking with you. Her arms are open and not closed; her legs are either wide apart or crossed with her feet pointing toward you.
- 2. She's comfortable in your company. When you lean closer to her, she stays in the same position and doesn't pull away.
- 3. She leans closer while talking with you or sits closer when you're sitting next to each other.
- 4. She smiles a lot, even laughing at your lamest jokes, or she compliments you on something unremarkable.
- 5. She touches you sometimes on your arms or shoulder when talking with you.
- 6. She fixes her clothes, applies more makeup in the restroom or exposes parts of her body, revealing skin and showing erotic body parts.
- 7. She rubs her wrists up and down, and she rubs, touches or strokes her cheek.
- 8. She plays with her hair, pushing her fingers through it or twirling a few curls in a slow, sensual motion.
- 9. She looks deep into your eyes while smiling, her pupils dilated. She blinks faster than usual or keeps looking into your eyes in a longing way, like your dog when you're about to feed him.

- 10. When you touch her or put your arms around her, she's comfortable with it; she might even snuggle closer to you.
- 11. When you extend your hand to her, she takes it and keeps holding it as if you are already a couple.
- 12. She bites her lips and licks them, showing her tongue, or she moistens her lips with lipstick. She puts a finger or nail into her mouth or over it in a sexual way these are signs of sexual thoughts, and they are usually signs of arousal.
- 13. She rubs her legs together and presses them to the legs of the table or to your legs under the table another sign of sexual arousal.
- 14. She plays with her wine glass, her jewelry or another object with a rubbing, stroking, sensual motion.
- 15. The way she sits or stands reflects your body language; she is mirroring you.

Of course, **she can't be doing everything at the same time**. But, if you encounter more than two or three of them (especially the more serious ones), she is likely to be heavily attracted to you and wanting you. *A word of warning:* Just as there are shy guys, **there are also shy girls**. They might have a harder time showing signs of interest and flirting with you. They might also try to hide these signs. You will recognize them from their girlish confusion.

And now let's see some negative body language, showing disinterest and less attraction to you:

- 1. She breaks eye contact and looks away when you try to look into her eyes.
- 2. She grimaces, showing that she is simply bored. She never smiles.
- 3. When you ask a question, she responds after a pause: "What did you say?" and it's obvious that she is thinking about something else or is somewhere else mentally.
- 4. There are long, awkward silences in your conversation, and she doesn't show any interest in breaking the silence or bringing up any new topics.
- 5. Her legs and arms are crossed; she is sitting at a distance, or she turns away from you. She leans back, and when you lean closer, she moves away or just acts as if she's uncomfortable.
- 6. She doesn't react to your jokes and doesn't laugh with you; she may express polite surprise.

And the list goes on. Although persistence is a good trait to have and sometimes by being persistent, you can recover from the most hopeless situations, the negative signs described above show that you've done something wrong, and it might be time to move on and search for another girl. Never be disappointed; success will come with determination and time.

4.6 How long does it take to lay her?

This is a question you might always have wondered about: **How long does it take to lay a woman?** The answer is: **It depends on both of you**: whether you're willing to initiate properly and whether she's ready for it or not. If you ask your friends or other guys, some of them will say that it took months to lay their girlfriends; some will say that they laid her the first night or on the first date. Generally, **you have a fair amount of control** over this, but laying a girl who is a total virgin and has never even been kissed will require some work.

Most girls will have no problems having sex in a few dates or even on the first date if they like you. Those who require more work fit into three categories: They are very young and inexperienced, dealing with problems or playing you. Laying a young virgin will require a lot of patience. She will want to feel special with you and to know that you care about her, love her and won't leave her after having sex. Teenage virgins are usually very idealistic and believe in true love. Taking such a girl's virginity is a big responsibility. They very quickly get emotionally attached to the guy who does it. If you don't really like her and are thinking about moving on soon, you should leave her before the act, unless she is an older virgin, in which case she falls into the second category.

These are girls with problems: those who have never had an orgasm, whose first sexual experience was horrible, who were raped or who have serious inhibitions, maybe because of their religious upbringing or previous sexual experiences. These girls may be in another category, but still require you to be just as caring and responsible as with virgins. Their inhibitions can be overcome with love and patience, and after that, they will open up sexually. Such girls can give you a lot of love, and they are not girls you have sex with and then move on to another woman.

The third category includes women who have rules for acting hard to get and playing with guys. Some of these girls are very hot with big egos and attitudes. They want and enjoy sex, but they also love it when men fight for them. You'll hear excuses from these women, such as: "I'm not ready for sex yet" or "I don't feel special yet." If you think this is the case, take it as a test. She needs to feel that you are Man enough, so give it to her. A little bit of jerk attitude might help in these situations. Be more aggressive than usual. Don't rape her, of course, but be more physical. These girls need to see how powerful you are. Show her that you have options, and you are ready to move on anytime. She should know that you are the selector, and she is not in a position to make the rules. You should be the one in charge and in control. Tell her that you are not open to playing her little games, and she can either give in or you will move on quickly.

Make sure you **never set unreachable goals for yourself**. If you want to lay every chick on the first date, it just won't happen. **With each girl** you're dating, **you should decide whether you want** a **long-term relationship or** you're **just having fun with each other**. If you like her personality and she seems to be an ideal partner, it might be worth waiting a while even if she has sexual inhibitions to overcome. If you try to force things and attack her aggressively, you might scare an otherwise wonderful woman away. Of course, with experience, you'll be able to sense how far you can go with a certain girl.

On the other hand, always see through her game and, if you think she's playing you, move on. **Never wait months to lay a woman** who's not worth your time. And, even if a girl requires a lot of work, you don't have to commit yourself to her, and you can be seeing other women at the same time. **Never limit yourself** or your opportunities.

When does a relationship start? Personally, I usually consider that a relationship has begun after we've had sex. Kissing or hanging out together is nothing special for most girls, and you should take it the same way. At least up to the point of having sex, I consider it open, and I'm seeing other girls. It's about having options. Why commit yourself to a girl who won't even have sex with you?

4.7 Getting women in the mood: three ways to kiss her

Before we can even talk about sex or kissing, you have to get her in the mood for it. A few chapters ago, I talked about the four most important steps in the process: loosening up, rapport, comfort/trust and AROUSAL. Any time you go through these phases, you're working on **getting her in the mood**. I've already mentioned some conversational aspects of this; now I'd like to talk about the physical part of the equation.

Let's say you've covered the basics. After a nice chat with each other, she is loosened up and feeling comfortable in your company. You can use the questions game at this point to **direct the conversation toward more sexual topics** and get her thinking about sex. Of course, you can come up with your own way of doing things — the questions game is just one tool of many you can use.

Now we begin to lay the foundation on which we can start building the house. In saying this, I mean that you will need to get the physical part down as well. One thing that's necessary is human touch. How do you expect a girl to be comfortable with your kissing her if you have never even touched her? I don't want you to become another touchy-feely guy, but don't be afraid to touch her when the mood is right. Touch her arms, shoulders, back and her hands occasionally.

Touch her in a casual way from the beginning of the conversation, as if nothing has happened and it's a normal part of human interactions. When she's more comfortable in your company, stand or sit next to her. Try putting one of your hands on her back or waist area and embracing her. If she moves away, it means that she's not ready to go more physical yet. Don't force anything; take a few steps back and establish more trust with her. Talk a bit, have fun together and let her loosen up more.

If you're new to the whole thing and not used to touching girls, it might seem strange when you do it for the first time. You will need to practice it. The first step is to realize that without touching, you're going nowhere. You'll have to do it sooner or later if you want to get anywhere, so touch her as soon as you can. A Man has no problems with going physical. If you can't do it, you won't be able to INITIATE and LEAD. That's one of the biggest mistakes you can make.

So **practice casual touching during your everyday conversations with** people and especially **women**. Don't overdo it, but when you're talking to a girl or your close friends, touch them in nonsexual areas, including their hands, arms, shoulders and back. Pay attention to how they react though; some of your friends might not be comfortable with a guy touching them, and you should definitely NOT practice on your boss, unless you want her to sue you for molesting her.

Back to your date: When touching her, always watch for **signs** that she's giving. Don't stare at her, but pay attention to the subtle indicators **that she's ready for the kiss**. Use what you learned in *chapter 4.5*. Usually, if the girl is smiling, looking into your eyes and asking you questions; if she doesn't pull away when you lean closer; if she lets you keep your hand on her back when you're sitting next to each other; if you're having a pleasant conversation and talking about deeper topics or even about sex; or if she starts licking her lips with her tongue — she is ready for the kiss to happen. Now it's time for you to initiate. But how?

There's a little test you can use to make sure you have the green light. Act as if you see a hair on her shoulder or on her face, and gently stroke it off. Or, if you want to be more direct, when you're sitting close to her, you can simply touch her hair and stroke it a bit with your fingers. Or sweep it away from her ears. Letting you touch and play with her hair is almost as intimate as letting you kiss her. If she's relaxed while you're doing this and doesn't pull away or grimace, she's ready to be kissed.

There are **many ways to kiss her**. Here are three: a direct and two subtler ways. **The direct way** takes balls, but it's much easier. Tell her to close her eyes. If she asks why, tell her that you have a surprise for her. If she won't close them, it means she's not comfortable enough with you yet (if this happens, take a few steps back). **When she closes her eyes, lean in and**

give her a gentle kiss on the lips. She will either kiss back or be stunned. If the latter happens, just smile and say: "That was good, wasn't it?" This is the cocky way of doing it, but it works. To pull it off, you will have to be consistent with yourself. Never apologize for being the Man. You are the leader, and you will take what you want. If she ever acts annoyed or pissed, it's just her test to see if you're really a Man or only pretending. So smile at her, and act as if nothing has happened.

If you want a more subtle way to kiss her, there is a technique you can use. Her neck and shoulders are very sensitive for a woman. By smelling her there, you'll stir up her animal instincts. Just think about how dogs sniff each other during their mating game. First sit next to your girl. I also love to do this when slow-dancing. Wherever you do it, lean a little bit closer, and slowly start smelling her shoulders. Do it in a casual and relaxed way — both of you should enjoy it. Tell her that she has a wonderful scent, and you can't stop yourself from taking it in for a while. Breathe deeply and sigh while doing it — she should feel your light breathing on her skin slowly turning her on.

Take your time and spend a few minutes doing this, while advancing from her shoulders to her neck. Move to the sides of her neck and the nape just below where her hair grows. You can start gently kissing her neck after a few minutes of smelling. Move upward slowly with the kissing, and continue on her cheeks. When you feel that the time is right, lean in and give her a gentle kiss on the lips.

The last way is the shy guy's way. Just kidding — but it still takes the least balls to do. When you think she's ready, pop her the question: "Would you like to kiss me?" She will most likely say: "I don't know …" or "I'm not sure …" or "Maybe …" or "Yes!" If that happens, say "Hmmm, let's see!" and go in for the kiss. Sometimes you can get "No" as the answer. If that happens, tell her that she really knows how to ruin a beautiful moment, and act offended in a playful sort of way. Tell her that now she has to make it up to you; then let her figure out a way to do it. When you feel that the moment has arisen again, kiss her. And if nothing works, you can still use the smelling technique to initiate kissing.

Finally, **if you're unsure whether you're a good kisser or not, practice**. Kissing can be both gentle and aggressive. When kissing a girl for the first time, start gently and become more aggressive as both of you are getting turned on. Watch your partner's reaction. Although you can only become a good kisser by doing it in real life with real women, there's a little technique you can experiment with: Practice gentle, soft kissing on the back of your hand.

Generally, during kissing, your lips should be relaxed and not too stiff. Do it as you would kiss your love, and don't stress yourself, because your lips will become tense as well. When you use your tongue, don't force it into her mouth. Put it gently in and see how she reacts.

You can play with her tongue or pull yours back and let her put hers in your mouth. **Avoid** using too much saliva and **slobbering into her mouth**.

And, of course, **make sure you have good breath before kissing**. Have some chewing gum or breath freshener with you, and don't eat onions before your date. Flossing and using mouthwash or a tongue-scraper after brushing your teeth can do wonders to help you avoid bad breath. Ask your dentist for more info on the topic.

I remember the first girl I kissed when I was a teenager. She looked good, but she had braces on her teeth: It was a pretty intense experience. I hesitated for a long time before making my move. I didn't think she wanted to kiss me. But still, I popped her the question: "Do you want to kiss me?" She said, "I don't know ..." So I gathered all my courage and went in for the kiss. We ended up kissing for the whole night of the party. Even when you're not sure whether to make your move or not, doing something is always better than doing nothing. And, usually, the barriers are only in your mind, and the girl would have been ready for the kiss much earlier.

4.8 The make-out

A good make-out session after kissing can lead straight to sex. For this, you will need a calm place where you won't be disturbed and the knowledge on how to do it well. The knowledge is here; I will talk about possible places in the next chapter.

Let's say you've just kissed. It doesn't really matter whether you're on the first date or you've already had a few. **Take your time**, **do things slowly without rushing anything**, **and look deep into her eyes** whenever you can. **Start by running your fingers through her hair**. Play with it, wrapping a few locks around your fingers. You can also **grab a lock of hair** and **pull it softly**. Smell her hair, neck and shoulders a bit whether you have done it already or not. Take deep, long breaths, as if you're inhaling fresh air. Let your nose and mouth touch these areas when smelling them.

After a while, **start softly kissing her neck and shoulders**. Slowly advance up to her face, till you arrive at her lips. **Tease her** by taking more time; kiss her forehead, cheeks, nose and chin before going for her lips again. This makes the girl want your kisses even more. **When you've created enough anticipation**, **kiss her passionately for a while**: Softly slide your tongue into her mouth, and let it wander around. While kissing her, **explore the nape of her neck just below where her hair starts to grow**. This is a very erotic area for women. They love it when you stroke and caress it. You can push away her hair, and smell the nape as well. This will drive her crazy.

Alternate between smelling, short kisses on her face and neck, then deep erotic ones on her lips. Don't forget her ears. Caress them with your fingers; kiss the perimeter area, suck on them, bite them lightly and, if she is comfortable with it, lick inside with your tongue. Not all women like this type of activity around their ears though.

Biting her softly in places is a wonderful tool for arousal. Start with her neck and shoulders first. Make those subtle, very soft bites — you are not a cannibal after all. There is an erotic area on her arms where the forearms and upper arms meet. You can bite and smell her there — she will love it! Erotic sucking and licking on her neck, arms, shoulders, tits and thighs will arouse her as well; just don't slobber.

While doing some of the above, let your hands wander around her back and waist area. Then touch her belly, stomach and the sides of her body; caress and massage them gently. See how she reacts. If she is reluctant, take a few steps back; then advance slowly again. Mix it up from time to time: like a bit of kissing, then biting, etc., while stroking her with your hands.

When you think she is ready, slowly move on toward her more sexual areas. Touch the sides of her breasts "accidentally," or touch her butt a little while stroking her waist area. If she's comfortable with this, escalate your touches: Start by lightly caressing her tits and her ass. Massage them gently through her clothes. If the place allows it, you can start undressing her or simply pull up her bra a little. Draw diminishing circles with your fingers and tongue on her breasts from the outside to the inside — such anticipation will drive her crazy. Then, grab her tits more roughly and suck her nipples. You can use licking, sucking and biting to discover other sensitive places on her body as well.

Don't ignore her ass, legs and thighs either. Massage them and let your hands explore these areas. She might enjoy **soft pinches on her buttocks**. You can even try spanking her ass once or twice in a soft but sexual way. Whether she likes stronger or lighter touches will vary from girl to girl. **Experiment while making out** and **see how she responds**. If she likes it, keep doing it. There are **certain sexual areas** that **are the same for all girls**, but **each of them will have a specific part of her body** that is **more sensitive than the rest**. You'll have to figure this out over time by **watching her reactions** to your touches.

When she's comfortable with your playing with her tits, inner thighs and butt, **move your hand toward her mons pubis** (pubic area). **Massage her pussy through her clothes**. Slowly **slide your fingers inside her trousers** and massage her clitoris. If she lets you do it, put your fingers **inside her panties** and play with her bare pussy. You can also make subtle references to what you want by **putting her hand on** your lower belly then slowly sliding it downward toward **your crotch**. If she grabs your penis, she is very aroused.

During the make-out, **she may say things like**: "We shouldn't be doing this." "It's too fast for me." This is **the logical part of her brain (social conditioning) kicking in**. Unless she's upset, pulls away or tries to stop you, just **ignore these comments**. If you persist in giving her the sensations and arousal that are necessary, her animal instincts will take control, and she will be ready for sex.

If she physically stops you, stop immediately! Don't force anything, and DON'T RAPE HER! She might need some time and might be ready by the next time you meet. As I mentioned previously, some girls will require more time than others.

Since most of this won't happen at the restaurant or café where you took her, I will talk about logistics in the following chapter. And, by the way, all the above can be used as foreplay with some additions that you can read about in *chapter 1.4* of *ALL ABOUT WOMEN: How To Spice Up Your Sex Life*.

4.9 Her place or yours

If kissing or making out happens on your date or at a club, it's a good idea to **change venues**. A crowded café might not be the best place for having sex. Just tell her that you are tired of sitting and say, "Let's go for a walk!" At this point, you have many options. If you think she is not yet ready, do something else like taking a walk in the park. If she is ready, there are usually **three places** to go: **her place**, **your place** and **the car**. OK, you can do it in the bushes at the park, but that rarely happens. © **Let's look at each in detail:**

1. Her place. This is only a possibility if she lives alone or you know that her parents are not home for a while. After the date, you can offer to walk her home or take her by car. If you go by car, park it close to her apartment in a place where you can leave it for a while. Start kissing her goodbye, but also work on arousing her. Follow the make-out guide from chapter 4.8. Meanwhile, she might mention having to leave or having to get up early in the morning — these are just her logical brain's excuses, which show that she is getting way too aroused. If this happens, gently but confidently pull her back and keep on arousing her even more. Don't be aggressive, and don't rape her! Her body should be showing signs that she wants you. If you need to repeat this process four times, do it four times. If you're already fingering her pussy, but she still doesn't invite you in, you'll have to initiate it. Ask her if she wants to invite you for a cup of coffee or tea. Or simply tell her that you have to use her bathroom.

In the house, sit down and talk for a bit. Let her get comfortable with your presence at her place. Slowly reinitiate kissing and making out. Make sure you have a condom with you in your wallet, so there will be no "technical problems." At this point, sex is likely to happen.

If she doesn't want to give in, don't force it. Give her some time; you have already taken the most important steps and are very close to laying her the next time.

Here's a real-life example. I took a girl who later became my girlfriend home on our third date. This was the second time I had given her a ride. The first time she had invited me over for a hot cup of green tea, but I had to get up early the next morning and knew that we would have sex eventually anyway. It was inevitable. So the second time, we're sitting in front of her house and start making out in the car. She is damn horny, as I can tell from her moans and erotic kisses. At one point, she says she has to go and reaches to the backseat for her purse. I catch her arm, put her hand on my crotch and continue making out with her. I do the same the second time she tries to go and tell her that we have plenty of time, no need to hurry. She does this from time to time while I'm fingering her pussy, so finally I decide to make my move and ask: "Do you still have some of that green tea?" — while smiling innocently. You should have seen her face. Of course, we ended up having sex that night. With fewer clothes on and halfway to her orgasm, she asks: "Weren't you going to have some green tea?" My response: "No thanks, I don't like green tea. Only fruit tea."

2. Your place. If she lives with her parents, this is the only solution apart from having sex in the car. I usually wait for a date or two before inviting her over. As a rule of thumb, always kiss and make out a little before inviting a girl to go home with you or going to her place! How soon you can invite her depends on the type of girl you are dealing with. If you know that she's probably a virgin, it's worthless to rush things. But if you're having fun together, if she seems like a more sexual girl, and if you have already had that kiss, then go for it.

The easiest way is to **tell her that you have a fantastic recipe and** you want to **cook for her**. If you can't cook, offer to go shopping; then cook something with her help. Or tell her that you'll order pizza and have some fun together. **If she's reluctant about coming over** — even after some persuading from you — then she's not yet ready for it. **Wait for a few more dates, and make your offer again at a later time**.

Another way to do it is to go on a date, then invite her over. Sit at a café that is close to your place, or go to a nearby park for a walk. Have something at home that will serve as a reason for her to come over. It can be your rare music CDs, DVD collection, photos you took during your travels, a common interest that you share or anything else. Introduce the idea on your date, and offer to share it with her later: "I just got my hands on that rare U2 album we talked about. I live around the corner. You can come over, and we'll listen to it together." Don't be too eager about it, because she'll sense your insecurity. Be casually confident as usual.

Set the mood before she comes. Light a few candles, and chill some champagne or wine in the fridge. You can also put on some soothing, calming, seductive background music. When she arrives, kiss her at the door. Then lead her to the living room and talk a bit. She needs to get accustomed to the environment and loosen up a little. You can leave some interesting objects to talk about on your coffee table, such as a statue from your latest journey to Africa or a book about sexual positions or multiple male orgasms. Girls are curious enough to take up such a book and look inside. It can serve as a good conversation starter to direct the talking to "any" topic you want.

The living room is the best place to start kissing and making out. You can arouse her with foreplay on your couch, then lead her to the bedroom. Have your condoms close to the bed, so you won't have to search the whole apartment for them. But make sure they're not in a visible place; she could easily freak out if she sees them before you have sex for the first time.

This time, as a precautionary tale, here is another example from my life. I was very young and inexperienced. For once, my parents were away, and I invited a girl over to our house for the first time. I decided to cook for her, and then we'd watch a video together. I hadn't seen the film before. The spaghetti was good. The video was damn boring. We had met in a club a few days earlier, where we had kissed, and she had come over without any hesitation in response to my first invitation. Instead of leading her straight to my bedroom, we spent two hours watching that damn boring film. By the end of it, she was pissed and bored and left the house quickly. I have never seen her again. Learn from my mistake: If it's obvious that she wants sex, give it to her. If she doesn't want to move that fast, give her some time. Romance her a little. But, for God's sake, don't make her watch a boring film when you could be having so much "fun" together! ©

3. The car. I don't really recommend this place for having sex with a girl for the first time. If you do choose to do it there, make sure you have some experience. If you've never had sex in a car, it's not the best idea to do it with a "stranger." For one thing, it's not comfortable. I had a good friend who was in a car with the hottest girl he'd ever met, and he couldn't get it up from the stress. Such things happen ... So don't force it, unless you see that she is a really adventurous and sexual girl, who might be turned on by the thought of having sex in the car. If the girl seems less experienced or not yet ready for sex, avoid using the car.

4.10 What to have at home; how your apartment should look

You might choose to go to your place with your date. I've already emphasized how important it is for you to have your life together. Your home is a reflection of that. If your place is a mess with *Playboy* magazines scattered all over it and you haven't washed the dishes in a

month, what do you expect her reaction to be? You live at **your home**, you go to work from there, and you arrive there in the evening. If it's a mess, that's what you'll see each and every day. It **influences your overall mood**. Your place should be something that you enjoy and which reflects your personality. You are the one in charge. So don't spare money on it. Even if you happen to live with your parents, you are still in control of your own room.

I don't want to stress the basics again. Clean your house every week, wash the dishes, and keep everything in order. Make sure that your bathroom and the toilet are clean as well. Use air fresheners. Your house shouldn't look like a museum, so **bring some life to it**. If you are not sure about your taste, ask one of your friends or friend girls who has good taste in such things. **A little something here and there**, like a plant, a special piece of furniture, a Lava lamp or artwork **can spice up the look of everything**. There are many books and magazines on the topic, so I won't go into detail here.

Let's assume you have your house together now. Everything is neat and clean, and it's a place where you like to live. Make sure that you let in some fresh air, and set the temperature and humidity well before inviting a woman over.

Here are a few things to have when a girl is coming:

- 1. **Candles** and/or **incense**. You can even buy special scented candles. These are useful tools for setting the mood. Girls are romantic creatures, and they would rather eat by candlelight than by the light of a big, harsh lamp. Another good idea is a **dimmer switch**, which you can use to control the intensity of your lighting.
- 2. Interesting **books** a book about sex, for example. You can have her sit in the dining room, while you go to the bathroom for a few minutes. If you leave such a book on the table, it will get her attention for sure and give you something to talk about. ☺
- 3. Interesting or **exotic objects** such as stuff from your latest travels in Europe or even in a nearby city. Since most girls are curious, she will ask about it, and you can tell your stories and have something to talk about for a while.
- 4. A complete **stereo** and **home video system**. It doesn't have to be the best one out there, but you might want to listen to a CD or watch a sexy DVD that you rent together.
- 5. A stack of **audio CDs** to set the mood. Putting on some music when she comes or while you sit together on the couch can really help her to relax. I recommend chill-out/ambient or light rock music, because most girls like that. Examples are:

Electronic:

Buddha Bar series by Ravin and David Visan Café del Mar series by Jose Padilla Deep Dish Kruder & Dorfmeister LTJ Bukem Paul Oakenfold Royskopp

Classic:

Barry White
Bruce Springsteen
Enigma
Enya
Frank Sinatra
Madonna
Sade
Sting
Vangelis

Of course, whatever you play, it should reflect **YOUR OWN musical taste!** Don't listen to electronic music if you're into rock just because I suggested it. The preceding are just examples of general music that should be good for setting the mood for your date.

- 6. Alcohol and ice cubes in the fridge. Champagne is probably the best, but even some inexpensive wine or some long drink like Bailey's is OK. No need to spend thousands of dollars on champagne, but it should still be something decent. You can also find some nice cocktail recipes on the Net and mix cocktails for both of you to enjoy, like an orgasm cocktail, for example. ©
- 7. Chocolate, whipped cream and strawberries ideal for sex play.
- 8. **Bath bombs** and such stuff in the bathroom if you decide to shower or bathe together.
- 9. **Condoms,** of course. Don't put them in a visible place, but have them ready next to your bed in the drawer. You can also buy elegant sleeves or cases for your condoms.
- 10. By the way, I suggest you get a large double bed with many big, soft, fluffy pillows. Women love those.

In addition to the above, you can come up with your own ideas. I have a friend who has a huge **aquarium** filled with spectacular fish at his house. He feeds them together with his dates, and they love it. It's also a wonderful reason to say: "Have you seen my aquarium yet? You should come over to see it!" Note that **the aquarium itself is just an example**. You can **develop your own routines and ideas** for inviting girls over. Use your imagination.

It's also not bad to have some toys at home for sex play. By this, I don't mean a 12-inch vibrator or your favorite penis pump, but rather something that can enhance foreplay or intercourse. For example, you can buy a little massage machine to attach to your fingers and use it on various parts of her body. Search the Net for some interesting tools. There are other possibilities, including **silk scarves**, **soft brushes** and **feathers** — these are easier to get and just as useful for some fun.

Final words

Quote: "One day of experience is worth 100 years of theory."

First of all, thank you for reading my book. I hope you will find endless ways to use what's written herein. In writing this book, my goal was not to give a universal recipe or step-by-step instructions for seducing women. That would have been impossible. Each and every one of us is different, with a different personality and mission in life. Instead, I've tried to give you reference points on which to base your own methods and ways of doing things. I've presented you with schemes that you can apply to your situation and formulate your own unique approach. I wish you good luck on your journey and success with your experimentations. Use this knowledge to further your development as a Man.

Finally, never forget that women are not complicated machines, but real-life human beings made of flesh and blood, just like you and I. Treat them with respect, and relish the fulfillment and joy that a real woman can bring into your life.

If you happen to have any questions, comments or suggestions, feel free to e-mail me at giuseppen@seduction-and-dating.com.

Your feedback is invaluable to me. Please visit www.seduction-and-dating.com/feedback.htm, where you can post your opinions/comments/suggestions about this book anonymously. Thank you!

Appendix: Recommended reading

Here are a few websites and products that I recommend for reading/purchasing. They complement and expand on the information contained in this book.

Websites:

www.fastseduction.com

Great website with a seduction forum and up-to-date information on the topic of women.

www.cliffslist.com

Cliff's list is a very good seduction newsletter available for free.

Products:

Ranko Magami's audio CD - www.attractanddate.com

If you buy just one thing, buy Ranko's audio CD. It's short, to the point, conveys the perfect attitude and meshes well with this book.

Mantak Chia, Douglas Abrams: The Multi-Orgasmic Man, Sexual Secrets Every Man Should Know - www.healing-tao.co.uk/tao of shopping/The Multi - Orgasmic Man.htm

Mantak Chia is a respected Taoist master living in North America. In this book, he explains how it's possible for every male to become multi-orgasmic and enjoy earth-shaking orgasms like those that women experience.

Sarano Kelley: The Game: Win Your Life In 90 Days - www.saranokelley.com/book.php

A motivational book. Ideal if you are constantly procrastinating and need something to motivate you toward reaching your goals.